
Common Council

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers7:00 PMWednesday, May 5, 2021

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INVOCATION

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

D. ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONS

E. ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

F. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

21-0584 Common Council Meeting Minutes of Organizational Meeting and Council 

Meeting on April 21, 2021

 

CC Organizational Meeting Minutes 4-21-21.pdf

CC Minutes 4-21-21.pdf

Attachments:

G. BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYOR

21-0585 Proclamations
  - Nurses Month
  - Asian Heritage Month
  - Municipal Clerks Week
  - Police Week
  - Missing and Murdered Indigenous Women Day of Remembrance 

21-0586 Board & Commission Reappointments 

5-5-21 Reappointments.pdfAttachments:

21-0587 COVID-19 Update

 

H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 4/30/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17335
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ea7ea0f4-ee16-464e-b93b-a095ca608437.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8c6e7ecc-7290-4f69-9b0b-c178a8b1bd65.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17336
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17337
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0b943281-05e9-49f3-861a-da9805fdf2f6.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17338


May 5, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

21-0366 Public Hearing on Special Resolution 1-P-21, Concrete Pavement, 

Sidewalk Construction, and Driveway Aprons

Downs Ridge - Tiburon Drive to Purdy Parkway

Grinnell Court - Werner Road to CDS

Thomas Court - Purdy Parkway to CDS

Trinity Court - Downs Ridge to CDS

Alvin Street - Evergreen Drive to CDS

Newberry Street - Schaefer Street to the city limits (sidewalk only)

 

1-P-21 Public Hearing Notice.pdfAttachments:

21-0367 Public Hearing on Special Resolution 2-P-21; Sanitary Laterals, Storm 

Laterals, and Storm Main

Appleton Street - College Avenue to Atlantic Street

Atlantic Street - Oneida Street to Lawe Street

Douglas Street - Commercial Street to Wisconsin Avenue

Elsie Street - Mason Street to Richmond Street

Jackson Street - Calumet Street to Taft Avenue 

Lawrence Street - Walnut Street to Elm Street

Madison Street - Calumet Street to Taft Avenue

Meade Street - Pacific Street to Commercial Street

Minor Street - Meade Street to Rankin Street

Opechee Street - Green Bay Road to east

Owaissa Street - Opechee Street to Pacific Street

 

2-P-21 Public Hearing Notice.pdfAttachments:

J. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

21-0368 Final Resolution 1-P-21 Concrete Pavement, Sidewalk Construction, and 

Driveway Aprons

 

Final Resolution 1-P-21 Concrete Paving Sidewalks and Aprons.pdfAttachments:

21-0369 Final Resolution 2-P-21; Sanitary Laterals, Storm Laterals, and Storm 

Main

Final Resolution 2-P-21 Sanitary Laterals, Storm Laterals, Storm Main.pdfAttachments:

K. ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAY

L. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 4/30/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17117
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f449a2b9-b56d-47f7-a916-46e2515cd838.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17118
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d7934e19-9539-4bc2-96cb-735f5d06a1a6.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17119
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=95651752-4677-40ee-91e0-6a7d2ae9dcb5.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17120
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0de90ea0-3097-4c3b-8cbf-fc7a6b3ddff0.pdf


May 5, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

21-0432 Approve amended Central Equipment Agency Policy and Procedure 

Manual.

 

CEA Procedures Manual Strike and Bold April 2021.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/12/21 CEA Review Committee recommended for approval

21-0558 Adopt Appleton Downtown Streetscape Design Guide.

 

Downtown Streetscape Design Guide.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/26/21 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0559 Request for a permanent street occupancy permit for YMCA Ramp 

footings and foundations to extend into the Oneida Street, Lawrence 

Street, Morrison Street and Soldiers Square right-of-way no more than 5 

feet.

 

YMCA-Permanent Street Occ. Permit.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/26/21 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0562 Request from Crazy Sweet for a street occupancy permit to place tables 

and chairs in the College Avenue beautification strip at 514 W. College 

Avenue.

 

514 W College Street Occ. Permit.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/26/21 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0572 Request from Fress Restaurant & Bar for a street occupancy permit to 

place tables and chairs in the College Avenue beautification strip at 509 W 

College Avenue.

 

509 W College Ave Stree Occ. Permit.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/26/21 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

2. MINUTES OF THE SAFETY & LICENSING COMMITTEE

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 4/30/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17183
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=55a8ce88-c889-4d07-8f74-09c87cc55c94.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17309
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fc0cc405-194a-4140-aaff-ae11c87b70d7.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17310
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=48b624e2-431f-4b23-bcb6-3c9384a440aa.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17313
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4dfa8ade-043f-48b7-85af-b4dc70b1a1d1.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17323
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=907b6a38-4ef0-4865-8b10-77869068cc15.pdf


May 5, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

21-0453 Resolution #6-R-21- Resolution Condemning Xenophobia, Racism, and 
Violence Against The Asian Pacific Islander Desiamerican (APIDA) Community. 
 

#6-R-21 AAPI Resolution.pdf

HAP Letter of Disappointment.pdf

Literacy statement.pdf

D&R Statement of Support AAPI Community.pdf

Statement in support of City of Appleton Resolution 6R21.pdf

Statement-AAPI Resolution-City of Appleton 4-27-21.pdf

Support of AAPI Resolution.pdf

APPI comments- T. Hanna .pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

4/14/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

4/14/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

amended

Amended to clarify that the reference to the Attorney General is the State of WI 

Attorney General.

4/21/21 Common Council referred to the Safety and Licensing 

Committee

4/28/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

4/28/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

amended

The Motion to amend the item from City of Appleton Police Department to 'All 

City of Appleton Departments' failed.

A new Motion was introduced by Alderperson Smith, to remove "Wuhan" from 

the 11th Whereas statement.  The Motion failed for lack of a second.

21-0550 Resolution #7-R-21 Outdoor Alcohol Service

#7-R-21 Outdoor Alcohol Service.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/28/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

4/28/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

amended

Amended to extend the time-frame to Saturday, October 30th.

21-0452 Operator's License for Camilo Sebentsfeldt

CamiloSebentsfeldtDenial.pdf

Sebentsfeldt, Camilo.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

4/14/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for denial

Page 4 City of Appleton Printed on 4/30/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17204
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6a274a9a-e122-402b-a5e4-8e0460100e5a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d01fe8c3-8339-4935-8e25-910c0cb0dfbf.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0fc29132-43a5-4f41-8cf5-7d2fdec54de4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fc822065-0760-41cd-998e-85ecafd4224d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4f77b73a-6ec6-4082-b109-a8f444c10e71.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b0dfe675-c43b-49b8-aa6f-ea52d631ceb4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=02287a7e-f4da-4e68-9182-57cd6f468bbc.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9e0bee13-e895-453e-b5c6-bcc704f00777.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17301
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=372c1391-4ab4-4531-92f1-b8c63f52b1fa.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17203
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=65ab143e-fc17-4066-87d2-27b8668e822a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=139607c0-e25c-4ff8-b9a7-469d9680a542.pdf


May 5, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

4/14/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

held

4/28/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for denial

21-0476 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License Temporary Premise 

Amendment for Stone Arch Brewpub, Steven Lonsway, Agent, located at 

1004 S Olde Oneida St, contingent upon approvals from all departments.

Stone Arch Brewpub.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/28/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0477 "Class B" Liquor and Class "B" Beer License application for Gregg Van 

Dinter, located at 812 S Olde Oneida St, contingent upon approval from all 

departments.

Gregg VanDinter.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/28/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0488 Class "A" Beer and "Class A" Liquor License Change of Agent application 

for Dolgencorp, LLC d/b/a Dollar General #6535, Aaron D Dalton, New 

Agent, located at 1320 W Wisconsin Ave, contingent upon approval from 

Appleton Police Department. 

Aaron D Dalton-6535 S&L.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/28/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0489 Class "A" Beer and "Class A" Liquor License Change of Agent application 

for Dolgencorp, LLC d/b/a Dollar General #21851, Aaron D Dalton, New 

Agent, located at 1010 W College Ave, contingent upon approval from 

Appleton Police Department. 

Aaron D Dalton S&L.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/28/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0491 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License Change of Agent 

application for D2 of Appleton Inc d/ba D2 Appleton, Howard J Johnston, 

New Agent, located at 403 W College Ave, contingent upon approval from 

Appleton Police Department.

Howard Johnston S&L.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

Page 5 City of Appleton Printed on 4/30/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17227
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bd41a8ec-a127-4dc9-964c-224b05e40879.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17228
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6db2eeda-5d8b-49b2-9413-aeb3df229e00.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17239
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0f424b70-a570-4a21-911a-121093746a2e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17240
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=32ab7752-5c42-4aea-a2b4-ff2a9cd3055c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17242
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4bb1bd89-2bec-4b35-8dac-a956e4a8bcb9.pdf


May 5, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

4/28/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0552 Reserve "Class B" Liquor and Class "B" Beer License application for 

Appleton Hotel Venture LLC d/b/a Cambria Suites, Troy R Graverson, 

Agent, located at 3940 N Gateway Dr, contingent upon approval from all 

departments.

Cambria Suites.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/28/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0568 TaxiCab/Limousine/Commercial Quadricyle Company License Application 

for Social Station, LLC. Chris Burns, 325 N Appleton St, Appleton, WI. 

 

Social Station, LLC.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/28/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0577 Class "B" Beer and "Class C" Wine License Permanent Premise 

Amendment application for Moon Water Cafe LLC d/b/a Moon Water 

Cafe, Shannon Boegh, Agent, located at 606 N Lawe St, contingent upon 

approval from all departments.  

Moon Water Cafe Permanent S&L.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/28/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0578 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License Temporary Premise 

Amendment for Dairyland Brew Pub Co LLC d/b/a Dairyland Brew Pub, 

Dorri Schmidt, Agent, located at 1216 E Wisconsin Ave, on May 15, 2021, 

contingent upon approval from all departments.

Dairyland Brew Pub.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/28/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-0580 Electric Scooter Ordinance Amendment

 

Electric Scooter Ordinance Amendment_Chief Thomas.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/28/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 6 City of Appleton Printed on 4/30/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17303
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a7246a05-f191-4ae2-9640-bacb12973d03.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17319
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cb3b313c-b4c4-46ac-9b4b-7ffaa195aaf2.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17328
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e6b53287-e0eb-4665-821e-43772a523e01.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17329
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=90c034d4-6265-44e3-b357-f50335d019be.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17331
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3605da31-9bca-4d45-89a2-97418a97f76b.pdf


May 5, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

3. MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION

4. MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

5. MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

21-0501 Request to approve the following 2021 Budget adjustment:

General Fund - Department of Public Works

Miscellaneous Revenue +$57,200

Contractor Fees +$57,200

for utility locating services for TDS Fiber-Optic project

 

DPW Budget Adj.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/26/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

21-0503 CEA Review Committee Report

 

CEA MeetingMinutes12-Apr-2021-09-55-52.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/26/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

21-0525 Request to award the City of Appleton's 2021 Park Pavilions Roof 

Replacement project contract to Schulze Exteriors, LLC in the amount of 

$106,374 with a contingency of $10,000 for a project total not to exceed 

$116,374

 

2021 Parks Pavilion Roof Replacemnt Project.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/26/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

21-0526 Request to approve Lower Substation Building Remodeling Project 

Engineering Services Amendment #1 increasing the McMahon total 

contract amount by $7,000 from $24,000 to $31,000

 

2021 AWWTP Lower Substation Building Remodeling Design Contract Ammendment.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/26/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

Page 7 City of Appleton Printed on 4/30/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17252
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8f59815d-21f6-43c1-a960-f15984057c79.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17254
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fdc77f47-b551-4a3b-ad86-49c21e4c0d14.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17276
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=380fddf0-3a65-4bdf-b89e-42e8f7664b3c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17277
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c28e426f-a395-4d13-940d-07c046e9cd68.pdf


May 5, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

21-0527 Request to award the 2021 AWWTP Electrical Distribution Upgrades 

Phase 4 Project - Substation Installation contract to Van Ert Electric, Inc in 

the amount of $2,130,000 with a contingency of 10% for a project total not 

to exceed $2,343,000

 

2021 AWWTP Electrical Distribution Upgrades Phase 4 - Substation Installation.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/26/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

21-0528 Request to award the 2021 AWWTP Electrical Distribution Upgrades 

Phase 4 Project - Lower Substation Building Renovation contract to 

Cardinal Construction Co., Inc in the amount of $303,395 with a 

contingency of 12% for a project total not to exceed $339,802

 

2021 AWWTP Electrical Distribution Upgrades Phase 4 - Lower Subsation Building Renovation.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/26/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

21-0563 Request to award Unit D-21 Sidewalk Construction to Fischer Ulman 

Construction, Inc in an amount not to exceed $330,000

 

Award of Contract Unit D-21.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/26/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

21-0564 Request approval to reject all bids for Unit L-21. Re-bid Project in May 

2021

 

Reject all Bids - Unit L-21.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/26/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

21-0565 Request to postpone planned 2021 Sewer and Water Construction 

projects and re-budget in 2022

 

Postpone 2021 Sewer and Water Projects.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/26/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

6. MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

21-0520 Resolution #4-R-21 - CEDAW

#4-R-21 CEDAW Resolution.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

Page 8 City of Appleton Printed on 4/30/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17278
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f4071b90-a214-4427-aad5-6dbe51947583.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17279
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b04c2e30-1d8d-486f-b697-fbe13c85469a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17314
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=114c3b5d-e428-4164-992f-b1b1ebad11ec.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17315
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f6158287-0333-41b0-82c5-729533371aef.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17316
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=02c885a9-57e9-4514-aee9-2763fc74cedb.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17271
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1644651d-f2a4-4994-a6e0-f564f14ebcea.pdf


May 5, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

4/28/21 Community & Economic 

Development Committee

recommended for approval

7. MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE

8. MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

9. MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION

21-0535 Approval to Award the Design Contract for the 2021 Valley Transit 

Whitman Avenue Facility Renovation Project to Kueny, LLC.

2021 Valley Transit (Whitman Ave) Facility Remodeling Professional Services.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/27/21 Fox Cities Transit 

Commission

recommended for approval

21-0536 Approval to Issue a Purchase Order for 5-New Flyer Xcelsior Buses

Request Authorization fo Issue PO for Buses 04.2021.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/27/21 Fox Cities Transit 

Commission

recommended for approval

21-0537 Approval to Issue a Purchase Order for Replacement Bus Stop Signs

Award Recommendation VT21-001 Signs.pdf

Bus Stop Sign Bid Matrix.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

4/27/21 Fox Cities Transit 

Commission

recommended for approval

21-0538 Authorization to Establish a Free-Fare for "Service Connected" Disabled 

Veterans 

Memo for Disabled Vet Free Fare 04.21.2021.pdf

VA Ltr for VT.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

4/27/21 Fox Cities Transit 

Commission

recommended for approval

10. MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH

M. CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMS

N. ITEMS HELD

Page 9 City of Appleton Printed on 4/30/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17286
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c372d68e-4ea4-4c9d-aab8-90d895de708c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17287
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=49828f48-92b3-4cc5-8bb5-b2282c53c6ae.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17288
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5541ff44-d38d-4ff3-899c-ddd4122292fc.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0694d5b3-ad57-44b0-80f5-b1fda6cdd7e8.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17289
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b390524e-5f2f-453e-93aa-7a499f8246d1.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d56ef8a8-0f03-4185-870d-e1d6f761c910.pdf


May 5, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

O. ORDINANCES

21-0582 Ordinance #15-21

 

Ordinances going to Council 5-5-21.pdfAttachments:

Q. RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION

R. OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESS

S. ADJOURN

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and 

if feasible.

Page 10 City of Appleton Printed on 4/30/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17333
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8a7566fb-9a24-4c8b-b3da-0d0de56dd218.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Common Council

6:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, April 21, 2021

Organizational Meeting

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Woodford at 6:07 p.m.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSB.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska, Alderperson Chad Doran and Mayor 

Jake Woodford

Present: 16 - 

REPORT OF THE INFORMAL ORGANIZATIONAL MEETINGC.

21-0509 Amendment:

Rule 15.

Remove: 'unless a member of Council objects to the referral, and the 

objection is seconded; if 2/3 of the members present vote to approve 

the objection the item remains on the agenda and is not referred'

 

Rule 15 Amendment.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Prohaska moved, seconded by Alderperson Siebers, that the 

amendment to Rule 15 be approved. Roll Call. Motion failed by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Mike Smith, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim and Alderperson Joe Prohaska

4 - 

Nay: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Joe 

Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

11 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17260
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4b84d13f-df6f-41e3-a9c0-ce1cdaeaef34.pdf


April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0529 Amendment:

Rule 19.

Petitions / Resolutions - All Petitions and Resolutions should include a 

summary statement that will be read to the Common Council by the Clerk 

or designee.  If a summary statement is not included, the Clerk or 

designee may alternatively provide the Common Council with a brief 

summary of the Resolution’s subject matter.  Once the summary 

statement has been read,  it will be referred to one of the Standing 

Committees, Commissions, Boards of Jurisdiction or an elected official.  

The author of the Resolution should then attend and read the Resolution 

at the Committee meeting to which it is referred.  Resolutions referred to 

an elected official shall be referred to the appropriate Committee of 

jurisdiction within 60 days of receipt.  If a dual jurisdictional item arises, a 

joint committee of standing committees, commissions or boards may be 

established by the Mayor to address the subject in a timely manner.  

Additional input may be requested by the Chair of the Committee, 

Commission or Board of Jurisdiction from another Committee or Board.  

No City business shall be referred to a sub-committee except by the 

committee of jurisdiction or unless requested otherwise by the author of 

the resolution.

 

Rule 19 Amendment.pdfAttachments:

The amendment would strike the line:

'The author of the Resolution should then attend and read the Resolution at the 

Committee meeting to which it is referred.'

Alderperson Van Zeeland moved, seconded by Alderperson Wolff, that the 

amendment to Rule 19 be amended. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Katie 

Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, 

Alderperson Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike 

Smith and Alderperson Nate Wolff

9 - 

Nay: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

6 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 2City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17280
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f5b85ceb-68c9-471d-a086-552eaef76918.pdf


April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Amend to add a sentence after 'Once the summary statement has been read it will be 

referred to one of the Standing Committees, Commissions Boards of Jurisdiction or an 

elected to official.'

The added sentence reads:

'The author/lead author/co-sponsor may appear at the Committee meeting or convey to 

the Committee the intent of the Resolution and be available for questions.'

Alderperson Smith moved, seconded by Alderperson Reed, that the 

amendment to Rule 19 be further amended. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson 

Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Matthew Reed, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe 

Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

9 - 

Nay: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van 

Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Alex Schultz and 

Alderperson Nate Wolff

6 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Amendment changes wording in the first few sentences of the rule:

All Resolutions 'MAY' include a summary statement that 'CAN' be read to the Common 

Council by the Clerk or designee.  If a summary statement is not included, the Clerk 

or designee 'SHALL READ THE RESOLUTION IN ITS ENTIRETY'.

Alderperson Firkus moved, seconded by Alderperson Smith, that the 

amendment to Rule 19 be further amended. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Nay: Alderperson Joe Martin1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Alderperson Martin moved, seconded by Alderperson Prohaska, that the 

Amendment to Rule 19 be approved as amended. Roll Call. Motion carried by 

the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Matthew Reed, Alderperson Mike 

Smith, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

13 - 

Nay: Alderperson Denise Fenton and Alderperson Alex Schultz2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 3City of Appleton



April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0530 Amendment:

Rule 14.

Remove 'At the time the question is called, the Chair will announce how 

many Alderpersons are in line to speak.'   
 

Rule 14 Amendment.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Prohaska moved, seconded by Alderperson Smith, that the 

Amendment to Rule 14 be approved. Roll Call. Motion failed by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad 

Doran

6 - 

Nay: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua 

Thao, Alderperson Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim and Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim

9 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

21-0478 Rules of Council

 

Council Rules ADOPTED 4-22-2020 .pdf

Council Rules AMENDED 4-21-2021.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Prohaska moved, seconded by Alderperson Firkus, that the Rules 

of Council be approved as amended. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Nay: Alderperson Joe Martin1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

21-0479 Department & Committee Functions

 

Dept-Comm Functions - ADOPTED 4-22-2020.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Prohaska moved, seconded by Alderperson Hartzheim, that the 

Department & Committee functions be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by 

the following vote:

Page 4City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17281
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=53104135-688d-4b0d-8523-25fab58033c3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17229
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e3910fe3-6fa5-426f-879f-6700a4d362d4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=efaf9ee0-21cc-4735-98ae-346698711961.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17230
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=68eb6e4f-5316-4c42-ae40-46b8d1839ed3.pdf


April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

RE-COMMIT TO THE CODE OF CONDUCTD.

21-0486 Code of Conduct

 

Code of Conduct.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Smith moved, seconded by Alderperson Alfheim, that the 

Commitment to the Code of Conduct be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by 

the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEES & COMMITTEE CHAIRSE.

21-0551 Committee Appointments

 

Council Memo w'Alderperson Committee Appts 2021 (002).pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Prohaska moved, seconded by Alderperson Smith, that the 

Committee Appointments be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 5City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17237
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=32651676-a39a-4536-a0b9-8c5f9e76f6bd.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17302
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b5f2fc77-04f7-49d4-a6b2-863655027578.pdf


April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

ELECTION OF COMMON COUNCIL PRESIDENTF.

Alderpersons Reed and Meltzer were nominated.

A vote was taken by secret ballot, Alderperson Reed received 8 votes, Alderperson 

Meltzer received 7 votes.

Alderperson Matt Reed was elected as the Council President

ELECTION OF COMMON COUNCIL VICE-PRESIDENTG.

Alderperson Van Zeeland was nominated for Council Vice-President.

There were no other nominations made.

Alderperson Van Zeeland was elected Council Vice-President by unanimous consent.

ELECTION OF COMMON COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE TO THE CITY PLAN 

COMMISSION
H.

Alderperson Fenton was nominated.

Alderperson Smith was nominated, but declined the nomination.

Alderperson Denise Fenton was elected to be the Council Representative to the City 

Plan Commission by unanimous consent.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONSI.

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSJ.

ADJOURNK.

Alderperson Doran moved, seconded by Alderperson Martin, that the meeting 

be adjourned at 7:29 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 6City of Appleton



100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Common Council

7:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, April 21, 2021

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Woodford at 7:42 p.m.

INVOCATIONB.

The Invocation was offered by Alderperson Wolff

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAGC.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSD.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska, Alderperson Chad Doran and Mayor 

Jake Woodford

Present: 16 - 

ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADSE.

All departments were represented.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTESF.

21-0485 Common Council Meeting Minutes of April 7, 2021

 

CC Minutes 4-7-21.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Prohaska moved, seconded by Alderperson Reed, that the Minutes 

be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Joe Martin1 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17236
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=608538ff-e424-403c-b54a-42f929700a92.pdf


April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYORG.

21-0480 Commission and Board Reappointments 

 

Reappointments Confirmation Memo to Council 4-21-21.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Prohaska moved, seconded by Alderperson Doran, that the 

Reappointments be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

21-0481 Arbor Day Proclamation

Arbor Day Proclamation.pdfAttachments:

21-0482 Earth Day Proclamation

 

Earth Day Proclamation.pdfAttachments:

21-0483 COVID-19 Update

 

COVID -19 Cases 4-21-21(00F).pdfAttachments:

Page 2City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17231
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=aeaac0c8-8f9a-46b7-b074-1ab68ae3ee3b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17232
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e62949db-2bd9-4635-9c65-b38cf84168fb.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17233
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b207a32e-bcce-4752-a7c5-688714d5a943.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17234
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5b759cea-5350-44aa-b3f7-e0a5aa1687a1.pdf


April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONH.

The following spoke regarding Item 21-0453 Resolution #6-R-21:

Gary Crevier, 37 Ramlen Ct

Tami Mclaughlin, 1618 N Appleton St

Kou Vang, 1625 W Kaylee Ln

Ger Vang, 18 Bellevue Pl

Joe Vang, 201 E Meadow Grove Blvd

Za Blonc Vang, 419 E Wilson Ave

Thong Thor, 950 E Edgewood Dr

Christina Thor, 3024B Conesta Dr #8 Green Bay

Tina Thor, 2610 N William St

Jeanne Roberts, 1110 E Florida Ave

Renee Gralewicz, 1803 S Memorial Dr

Amanda Stuck, 1401 N Harriman St

The following spoke regarding Item 21-0289 Resolution #3-R-21:

Hannah Herzog, 4313 N Windcross Dr

Alderperson Smith moved, seconded by Alderperson Prohaska, that the 

Council extend the time for Public Participation. Roll Call. Motion carried by 

the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

PUBLIC HEARINGSI.

21-0474 Public Hearing on the proposed repeal and recreation of Article X of 

Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code, relating to Floodplain Zoning

 

Notice of Public Hearing Floodplain Ord X.pdfAttachments:

The public hearing was held, no one spoke during the hearing.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSJ.

21-0487 Initial Resolution for Prospect Ave. and Douglas St. Street Vacation

 

InitialResolution_ProspectAvDouglasSt_StreetVacation.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved

Page 3City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17225
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7def727f-bd74-4f4a-916a-ce9800c27fd2.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17238
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2936b95d-2434-4bfa-ac2e-47ab192befbc.pdf


April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

21-0453 Resolution #6-R-21- Resolution Condemning Xenophobia, Racism, and 
Violence Against The Asian Pacific Islander Desiamerican (APIDA) 
Community. 
 

#6-R-21 AAPI Resolution.pdfAttachments:

This Resolution was referred back to the Safety and Licensing Committee, by 

Alderperson Siebers, due back on 4/28/2021.

21-0545 Objection to Referral of 6-R-21

Alderperson Wolff objected, seconded by Alderperson Fenton, to the referral.  

A vote was taken (2/3 required) to approve the objection and keep the item on 

the Council agenda.  Roll Call. Motion failed by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Joe 

Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim and Alderperson Nate Wolff

9 - 

Nay: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Matthew Reed, Alderperson 

Mike Smith, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

6 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

21-0289 Resolution #3-R-21 Prohibition on Large Scale Commercial Dog and 

Cat Breeding  

#3-R-21 Large Scale Dog & Cat Breeding Ord.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Prohaska moved, seconded by Alderperson Smith, that the 

Resolution be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

COMMITTEE REPORTSL.

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, Alderperson Alfheim seconded, to approve the 

balance of the agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Page 4City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17204
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6a274a9a-e122-402b-a5e4-8e0460100e5a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17040
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fa8e5361-8b06-47f9-b02c-c7f96cf2f281.pdf


April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE1.

21-0396 Preliminary Resolution 1-P-21 for Concrete Pavement, Driveway Aprons 

and Sidewalk Construction be adopted and refer the matter to the 

Finance Committee to determine the assessment rate.

 

1-P-21 Concrete Pavement.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0397 Approve partial street vacation at the intersection of Douglas Street and 

Prospect Avenue as shown on Exhibit "A".

 

Partial Street Vacation-Douglas St and Prospect Ave.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0398 Request from Robert McInnis for a permanent street occupancy permit to 

install a sprinkler system within the street right-of-way at 618 S. Theodore 

Street.

618 S Theodore St.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0399 Request from Sarah Powell for a street occupancy permit to place tables 

and chairs in the College Avenue beautification strip at 823 W. College 

Avenue.

 

823 W College Ave-tables & chairs.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 5City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17147
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=02483e35-c176-430a-b6c7-81a08ad305be.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17148
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1fce1ae2-dd80-4707-b377-186518803101.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17149
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f91d42f4-7600-49a9-bb03-22e596cd823c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17150
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c9df3e93-082b-49f3-b9f3-a7f434c39127.pdf


April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0400 Amend 2021 Contract for Operation, Maintenance and Monitoring at the 

Closed City of Appleton Landfill to SCS Engineers in an amount not to 

exceed $8,000.

 

Contract-Operation, Maintenance and Monitoring-Landfill.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0401 Request from Appvion for a permanent street occupancy permit for an 

in-street pedestrian crossing sign at the midblock crossing on the Meade 

Street side of their complex.

 

Appvion-Permanent Street Occupancy.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0403 Request from Creative Downtown Appleton Inc. for the Downtown 

Creates "Adopt-A-Planter to Create Garden Art" event from May 21-23, 

2021 to be located within the planters along the College Avenue amenity 

strip, as described in the attached documents and subject to the 

conditions in the attached staff report.

 

ADI-Adopt-A-Planter.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0405 Request from Creative Downtown Appleton Inc. for the Downtown 

Creates "Artful Chairs" event from June 18-20, 2021 to be located within 

the College Avenue amenity strip (Badger Avenue to Drew Street), as 

described in the attached documents and subject to the conditions in the 

attached staff report.

 

ADI-Artful Chairs.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 6City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17151
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2c102407-1eec-4bc9-b474-76b98e97f982.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17152
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4fc02c36-3c2b-47f9-9f4c-933a8927f0d4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17154
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a5dbec3c-296c-4227-a886-9add1e0c2e5b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17156
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d2a2b656-d855-48f2-9814-7a110c060a60.pdf


April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0406 Request from Creative Downtown Appleton Inc. for the Downtown 

Creates "Art Out - Plein Air Art" event on August 20, 2021 to be located 

within the College Avenue amenity strip (Badger Avenue to Drew Street), 

as described in the attached documents and subject to the conditions in 

the attached staff report.

 

ADI-Art Out-Plein Air Art.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0420 Request from Appleton Downtown Inc. for a street occupancy permit for 

Sidewalk Sales on the College Avenue Beautification Strip from 

Richmond Street to Drew Street for May 22, June 19, July 17 and August 

21, 2021.

 

ADI-Sidewalk Sale.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE2.

21-0454 Class "A" Beer License Change of Agent application for  FKG Oil 

Company d/b/a Badger Motomart, Allexander J Stichman, New Agent, 

located at 1850 W Wisconsin Ave, contingent upon approval from 

Appleton Police Department. 

Allexander J Stichman S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0455 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License Change of Agent 

application for Mark's East Side Inc d/b/a Mark's East Side, Alexander J 

Shea, New Agent, located at 1405 E Wisconsin Ave, contingent upon 

approval from Appleton Police Department. 

Alex J Shea S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION3.

Page 7City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17157
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=463bb518-07f1-4564-9a26-0182bafbc9be.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17171
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=45107721-d01a-49d6-b94f-d228fd2e27b4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17205
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d7c15267-07f8-4bbe-a690-02011a90ba2f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17206
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1ae97369-5403-458f-bfa4-e54cf4ffb544.pdf


April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0311 Request to approve repealing and recreating Article X of Chapter 23 of 

the Municipal Code relating to Floodplain Zoning and the Official Map, as 

identified in the attached staff report, per the request of the Department of 

Public Works, Engineering Division

StaffReport_TextAmendments_FloodplainOrd_For3-23-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0423 Request to approve the street discontinuance to vacate portions of West 

Prospect Avenue and South Douglas Street public right-of-way, generally 

located near the intersection of these streets, and adopt the Initial 

Resolution and exhibit map

StaffReport_ProspectAvDouglasSt_StreetVacation_For04-13-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0424 Request to approve detachment of territory from the City of Appleton to 

the Village of Harrison, per the Intergovernmental Cooperation 

Agreement, for a portion of Coop Road, generally located north of 

Midway Road, described in the attached petition and shown on the 

attached maps

StaffReport_CoopRd_Detachment_For04-13-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0425 Request to approve the Apple Ridge 2 Final Plat as shown on the 

attached maps and subject to the conditions in the attached staff report

StaffReport_FinalPlat_AppleRidge2_For4-13-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0426 Request to approve the Apple Fields Preliminary Plat as shown on the 

attached maps and subject to the conditions in the attached staff report

StaffReport_PreliminaryPlat_Apple Fields_For4-13-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE4.

Page 8City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17062
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8be7bb71-c826-48fc-8b0d-f46abc68d583.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17174
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d2c7ed33-8769-46d7-91e8-a9da83104104.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17175
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=112ed3ca-68bf-4d42-a67d-15863811db34.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17176
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=372889e4-4e4a-437e-9600-7caf810dcd71.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17177
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e49c6abb-d0c0-4d26-bfdb-ce7a0d104e89.pdf


April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0419 Action Item:  Request to award contract to ISG for Master Planning 

design services for Lundgaard Park in the amount of $27,700 with a 

design contingency of $2,300 for a total contract not to exceed $30,000

 

2021 Lundgaard Park Consultant.docAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE5.

21-0435 Request to approve the following 2021 Budget adjustment:

Sanitation Fund

Consulting Services +$8,000

Fund Balance - $8,000

for gas monitoring as requested by WDNR to work towards a passive 

gas system (2/3 vote of Council required)

 

Sanitation Memo.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0436 Request to award the City of Appleton's 2021 Parks Hardscapes Project 

- Pierce Park Path Improvements Project contract to Sommers 

Construction Co, Inc in the amount of $28,935 with a contingency of 

$7,000 for a project total not to exceed $35,935

 

2021 Pierce Park Path Improvements.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0444 Request to approve Finance Committee Report 1-P-21 for Concrete 

Pavement, Sidewalk Construction and Driveway Aprons

 

Report 1-P-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0445 Request to approve Finance Committee Report 2-P-21 for Sanitary 

Laterals, Storm Laterals and Storm Main

 

Report 2-P-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 9City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17170
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9714e907-ef6a-4c20-a863-6214c899a17c.doc
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17186
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=10ad126d-114d-4118-b09f-161b4aa50eda.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17187
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=38ceeb7c-3fa7-4618-9119-8b9f1597afca.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17195
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ae876aae-1f3a-462e-892e-43b3143a573c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17196
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=afff3b73-94f7-45bb-8ec5-a3f5cd936999.pdf


April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0446 Request to award Unit C-21 Sidewalk Sawcutting to ASTI Sawing, Inc in 

an amount not to exceed $40,000

 

Award of Contract Unit C-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0447 Request to award Unit J-21 Mini Storm Sewer construction to Alfson 

Excavating, LLC, Inc in an amount not to exceed $200,000

 

Award of Contract Unit J-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE6.

MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE7.

21-0430 Preliminary Resolution 2-P-21 for Sanitary Laterals, Storm Laterals and 

Storm Main be adopted and refer the matter to the Finance Committee to 

determine the assessment rate.

 

Resolution 2-P-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0431 Award of 2021F Stormwater Consulting Services Contract for Morrison 

Street and Glendale Avenue reconstruction with Brown and Caldwell in an 

amount not to exceed $32,775.

 

2021 Morrison Glendale Award memo_ (002).pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-0438 Request to sole source contract to Patrick Engineering for professional 

services needed to complete the Wastewater Electrical Distribution 

Upgrades Phase 5 (Final Phase), for a contract fee of $259,600 and a 

contingency of 5% not to exceed a total contract of $272,580.

 

2021 Electrical Distribution System Upgrades Design for 480v 

cabeling and Power System Study.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 10City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17197
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=408e92b1-ef86-453f-830c-9f7c013a0499.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17198
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0823ea5f-e872-46ba-ba1a-2379e9410561.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17181
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dcb84e66-c004-4ae1-a16f-93e38163201e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17182
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ea147b96-d4a3-4d35-a8de-ab3014ea4d19.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17189
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=eeeda306-c4cb-43fa-a027-10f2cdc12297.pdf


April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE
8.

21-0439 Request to approve overhire for Help Desk Analyst position in I.T.

 

Help Desk Over Hire Memo.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION9.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH10.

CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMSM.

21-0484 Consolidated Action Items Re: Prospect Ave & Douglas Street Vacation

21-0487 Special Resolutions

21-0397 Municipal Services Committee

21-0423 City Plan Commission

Alderperson Prohaska moved, seconded by Alderperson Reed, that the 

Consolidated Action Items be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

ITEMS HELDN.

ORDINANCESO.

21-0473 Ordinances #11-21, #12-21, #13-21, and #14-21 (Coop Road 

Detachment)

 

Ordinances going to Council 4-21-21.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Smith moved, seconded by Alderperson Prohaska, that the 

Ordinances be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Page 11City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17190
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=44b232d7-4b58-4469-86a8-4eb104f71435.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17235
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17224
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4ee8721d-eeb2-4a34-96f2-6dccb30d69f9.pdf


April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
P.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION
Q.

#7-R-21 Outdoor Alcohol Service

Submitted By: Alderperson Smith, District 10

4-21-2021

Referred To: Safety & Licensing Committee

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton currently has a process administered by the City 

Clerk wherein an establishment licensed under Ch. 125 Wis. Stats. may seek a 

temporary amendment of its premises description to allow for sales in certain outdoor 

areas including private parking lots and within the amenity strip as defined in Sec. 

9-256 of the Municipal Code.

 

Then in the NOW THEREFORE,

 1)   City staff shall process applications to temporarily amend the premises 

description of an establishment licensed under Ch. 125 Wis. Stats. as expeditiously 

as possible such that the application is reviewed by the Common Council within 

fourteen (14) days of receipt. Temporary amendments to the premise’s description may 

be granted from the time of issuance to October 2, 2021. The applicant shall be 

advised in writing and acknowledge that the permission granted is temporary in nature 

and expires on October 2, 2021.

 2)   That the use of sidewalk cafes is temporarily amended to allow for expanded use 

of the amenity strip and hours of service as follows:

 Sec. 9-262(a)(1) The parameters of the sidewalk café shall be limited to the area of 

the amenity strip located immediately in front of the establishment and shall not extend 

beyond the width of the property line unless written permission is granted by the 

immediately adjacent property owner to also use the amenity strip immediately in front 

of that owner’s property.

 Sec. 9-262(b)(4) The permit holder may begin serving alcoholic beverages in the 

sidewalk café at 11:00 a.m. All alcoholic beverages must be removed from the 

sidewalk café by 9:30 p.m.

 

These changes would remain in effect until October 2, 2021 and, due to their 

temporary nature, would not be codified in the Appleton Municipal Code.

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSR.

Page 12City of Appleton



April 21, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-0546 Suspend Council Rules

Meltzer moved, seconded by Firkus to suspend the Council Rules (to later 

convene into the Committee of the Whole, to take up Item 21-0453). 2/3 Vote 

Required. Roll Call. Motion failed by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Katie 

Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, 

Alderperson Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff and Mayor Jake Woodford

10 - 

Nay: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Mike 

Smith, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

6 - 

ADJOURNS.

Alderperson Prohaska moved, seconded by Alderperson Doran, that the 

meeting be adjourned at 9:10 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Mike Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 13City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17297




 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 

(Final Resolution 1-P-21) 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT the Common Council hereby declares its intention to exercise 
its powers under Section 66.0703, Wisconsin Statutes, to levy special assessments upon property 
within the following described area for benefits conferred upon such property by improvement of 
the following area. 
 

CONCRETE PAVEMENT, SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION AND DRIVEWAY APRONS  
 
 Downs Ridge (Tiburon Dr to Purdy Pkwy) 
 Grinnell Ct (Werner Rd to CDS) 
 Thomas Ct (Purdy Pkwy to CDS) 
 Trinity Ct (Downs Ridge to CDS) 
 Alvin St (Evergreen Dr to CDS) 
 Newberry St (Schaefer St to city limits) – sidewalk only 

 
The assessment area consists of all property fronting upon both sides of the named streets from 
intersection to intersection or point to point described herewith including the full width of said 
intersection of said limits. 
 
The Report of the Finance Committee showing preliminary and/or Final Plans and 
Specifications, estimated cost of improvements, schedule of proposed assessments is on file in 
the Department of Public Works, Fifth Floor, 100 North Appleton Street, Appleton, WI  54911.  
Please call 832-5592 to discuss specific questions or amounts to be assessed to your property or 
to view said documents, Monday through Friday, between the hours of 7:30 A.M. to 3:00 P.M. 

 
You are further notified that the Common Council will hear all persons interested or their agents 
or attorneys concerning matters contained in the final resolution authorizing such improvements 
and assessments at a regular meeting of the Common Council to be held on  
May 5, 2021 at 7:00 P.M. or as soon thereafter as can be heard, in the Council Chambers at the 
City Hall, 100 North Appleton Street, Appleton, Wisconsin.  All objections will be considered at 
said hearing and thereafter the amount of the assessments will be finally determined. 
 
April 22, 2021   
 
RUN: April 26, 2021     KAMI LYNCH, City Clerk 
 
 
REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WILL BE 
MADE UPON REQUEST AND IF FEASIBLE.  



 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 

(Final Resolution 2-P-21) 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT the Common Council hereby declares its intention to exercise 
its powers under Section 66.0703, Wisconsin Statutes, to levy special assessments upon property 
within the following described area for benefits conferred upon such property by improvement of 
the following area. 
 

SANITARY LATERALS, STORM LATERALS AND STORM MAIN 
 

 Appleton St (College Ave to Atlantic St) 
 Atlantic St (Oneida St to Lawe St) 
 Douglas St (Commercial St to Wisconsin Ave) 
 Elsie St (Mason St to Richmond St) 
 Jackson St (Calumet St to Fremont St) 
 Lawrence St (Walnut St to Elm St) 
 Madison St (Calumet St to Taft Ave) 
 Meade St (Pacific St to Commercial St) 
 Minor St (Meade St to Rankin St) 
 Opechee St (Green Bay Rd to east 
 Owaissa St (Opechee St to Pacific St) 

 
The assessment area consists of all property fronting upon both sides of the named streets from 
intersection to intersection or point to point described herewith including the full width of said 
intersection of said limits. 
 
The Report of the Finance Committee showing preliminary and/or Final Plans and 
Specifications, estimated cost of improvements, schedule of proposed assessments is on file in 
the Department of Public Works, Fifth Floor, 100 North Appleton Street, Appleton, WI  54911.  
Please call 832-5592 to discuss specific questions or amounts to be assessed to your property or 
to view said documents, Monday through Friday, between the hours of 7:30 A.M. to 3:00 P.M. 

 
You are further notified that the Common Council will hear all persons interested or their agents 
or attorneys concerning matters contained in the final resolution authorizing such improvements 
and assessments at a regular meeting of the Common Council to be held on  
May 5, 2021 at 7:00 P.M. or as soon thereafter as can be heard, in the Council Chambers at the 
City Hall, 100 North Appleton Street, Appleton, Wisconsin.  All objections will be considered at 
said hearing and thereafter the amount of the assessments will be finally determined. 
 
April 22, 2021   
 
RUN: April 26, 2021     KAMI LYNCH, City Clerk 
 
 
REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WILL BE 
MADE UPON REQUEST AND IF FEASIBLE.  



CITY OF APPLETON 
RESOLUTION 1-P-21 

 
FINAL RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENT TO EXERCISE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT POWERS UNDER 

SECTION 66.0703 (7) (a), WISCONSIN STATUTES OF 2011-2012. 
 
WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Appleton, Wisconsin, held a Public Hearing at the Council Chambers in City 
Hall at 7:00 P.M. on the 5th day of May, 2021, for the purpose of hearing all interested persons concerning the proposed 
improvements and construction in the following streets or portion of streets: 

 
 
CONCRETE PAVEMENT, SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION AND DRIVEWAY APRONS  
 
 Downs Ridge (Tiburon Dr to Purdy Pkwy) 
 Grinnell Ct (Werner Rd to CDS) 
 Thomas Ct (Purdy Pkwy to CDS) 
 Trinity Ct (Downs Ridge to CDS) 
 Alvin St (Evergreen Dr to CDS) 
 Newberry St (Schaefer St to city limits) – sidewalk only 

   
And has heard all persons desiring an audience at such hearing.  
   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Appleton as follows: 
 

1. That the report of the Finance Committee pertaining to the construction of the above described public improvements 
including plans and specifications therefor, is hereby adopted and approved. 

2. That the Finance Committee is directed to advertise for bids to carry out the work of such improvement in 
accordance with the report of the Finance Committee. 

3. That payment for said improvements be made by assessing the cost to the property benefited as indicated in said 
report. 

4. The schedule of proposed assessments made under the police power and the amount assessed against each parcel are 
true and correct and are hereby confirmed. 

5. That the assessment for all projects included on said report are hereby combined as a single assessment but any 
interested property owner shall be entitled to object to each assessment separately or both assessments jointly for any 
purpose or purposes. 

6. The assessment against any parcel may be paid to the Finance Department on receipt of Special Assessment Notice 
by one of the following: 

a. In cash, or if entered on the Tax Roll. 
b. One installment, if the assessment is $1000 or less. 
c. In five equal installments, if the assessment is greater than $1000; 

  Deferred payment will bear an interest at the rate of 8.5% per annum on the unpaid balance. 
7. The City Clerk is directed to publish this resolution in the Appleton Post Crescent, the Official Newspaper of the 

City. 
8. The Clerk is further directed to mail a copy of this resolution to every affected property owner whose name appears 

on the assessment roll and whose post office address is known or can with diligence be ascertained. 
 
        
        S/JACOB A. WOODFORD (Mayor) 

         
Attest:  KAMI LYNCH (City Clerk)  

 
Adopted:   May 5, 2021 
Published: May 10, 2021 

 



CITY OF APPLETON 
RESOLUTION 2-P-21 

 
FINAL RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENT TO EXERCISE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT POWERS UNDER 

SECTION 66.0703 (7) (a), WISCONSIN STATUTES OF 2011-2012. 
 
WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Appleton, Wisconsin, held a Public Hearing at the Council Chambers in City 
Hall at 7:00 P.M. on the 5th day of May, 2021, for the purpose of hearing all interested persons concerning the proposed 
improvements and construction in the following streets or portion of streets: 
 

SANITARY LATERALS, STORM LATERALS AND STORM MAIN 
 

 Appleton St (College Ave to Atlantic St) 
 Atlantic St (Oneida St to Lawe St) 
 Douglas St (Commercial St to Wisconsin Ave) 
 Elsie St (Mason St to Richmond St) 
 Jackson St (Calumet St to Fremont St) 
 Lawrence St (Walnut St to Elm St) 
 Madison St (Calumet St to Taft Ave) 
 Meade St (Pacific St to Commercial St) 
 Minor St (Meade St to Rankin St) 
 Opechee St (Green Bay Rd to east 
 Owaissa St (Opechee St to Pacific St) 

   
And has heard all persons desiring an audience at such hearing.  
   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Appleton as follows: 
 

1. That the report of the Finance Committee pertaining to the construction of the above described public improvements 
including plans and specifications therefor, is hereby adopted and approved. 

2. That the Finance Committee is directed to advertise for bids to carry out the work of such improvement in 
accordance with the report of the Finance Committee. 

3. That payment for said improvements be made by assessing the cost to the property benefited as indicated in said 
report. 

4. The schedule of proposed assessments made under the police power and the amount assessed against each parcel are 
true and correct and are hereby confirmed. 

5. That the assessment for all projects included on said report are hereby combined as a single assessment but any 
interested property owner shall be entitled to object to each assessment separately or both assessments jointly for any 
purpose or purposes. 

6. The assessment against any parcel may be paid to the Finance Department on receipt of Special Assessment Notice 
by one of the following: 

a. In cash, or if entered on the Tax Roll. 
b. One installment, if the assessment is $1000 or less. 
c. In five equal installments, if the assessment is greater than $1000; 

  Deferred payment will bear an interest at the rate of 8.5% per annum on the unpaid balance. 
7. The City Clerk is directed to publish this resolution in the Appleton Post Crescent, the Official Newspaper of the 

City. 
8. The Clerk is further directed to mail a copy of this resolution to every affected property owner whose name appears 

on the assessment roll and whose post office address is known or can with diligence be ascertained. 
 
        
        S/JACOB A. WOODFORD (Mayor) 

         
Attest:  KAMI LYNCH (City Clerk)  

 
Adopted:   May 5, 2021 
Published: May 10, 2021 

 



 1 

 
 
 

Central Equipment Agency 
 

Policy 
 

& 
 

Procedure 
 

Manual 
 
 
 

           Revised January 2015   April 2021 

 
 



 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
I. PURPOSE     ……………………………………………………………  4 
 
II. MISSION STATEMENTS 
 

A. DPW Mission Statement    …………………………………….. 4 
B. CEA Mission Statement     ……………………………………. 4 
C. CEA Administration Program Mission Statement     …………. 4 
D. CEA Maintenance Program Mission Statement     …………….  4 
E. CEA Capital Replacements Program Mission Statement     ….. 4 

 
III. CEA POLICY     ……………………………………………………… 5 
 
IV. CEA COMMITTEE COMPOSITION 
 

A. CEA Users Group Committee     ……………………………… 5 
B. CEA Review Committee     …………………………………… 6 

 
V. PROCEDURES 
 

A. City Vehicle Assignment Policy     …………………………… 6 
B. Vehicle Addition Procedure     ……………………………….. 7 
C. Vehicle Replacement Procedure     …………………………… 7 
D. Capital Lease Policy     ……………………………………….. 10 
E. Renting vs. Purchasing Equipment     ………………………… 10 
F. Preventative Maintenance Procedures     …………………….. 11 
G. Oil Change Coding     ………………………………………… 13 
H. Operator Required Vehicle Maintenance     ………………….. 14 
I. Equipment Cleaning     ……………………………………….. 15 
J. Fines and Overloads     ……………………………………….. 15 
K. Commercial Driver’s License Requirements     ……………… 16 
L. Accident and Insurance Procedures     ……………………….. 17 
M. Use of Public Works Equipment by Other Departments   ….... 18 
N. CEA Out of Town Vehicle Policy …………………………… 18 

 
VI. CEA RATE STRUCTURE 
 

A. Replacement Reserve Rate     ………………………………… 18 
B. Surplus Reserve Fund..……………………………………….. 19 
C. Maintenance Cost     …………………………………………. 19 

 
 
 
 
 



 3 

VII. APPENDIX 
 

A. CEA Fleet Codes  …………………………………………… 20 
B. Vehicle Condition Evaluation Form (Med/Heavy Duty)……. 21 
C. Vehicle Condition Evaluation Form (Sedans/Light Truck) … 22 
D. Vehicle Condition Evaluation Form (Off Road)  …………… 23 
E. Equipment Rating Sheet  ……………………………………. 24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 4 

I. PURPOSE 
 

The Central Equipment Agency (CEA) exists to maintain those pieces of 
equipment within the City Fleet with a combined value of over $10,000 including 
engine, tires and/or attachments and to provide orderly replacement of vehicles as 
they reach their useful service life. 

 
II. MISSION STATEMENTS 
 

A. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS MISSION STATEMENT 
 

To provide quality, cost-effective Public Works services for our 
customers. 

 
B. CEA MISSION STATEMENT 
 

The Central Equipment Agency exists to maintain the City Fleet and to 
provide orderly replacement of vehicles as they reach their useful service 
life. 

 
C. CEA ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM MISSION STATEMENT 
 

For the benefit of all users of city owned vehicles, we will establish 
overhead rates, evaluate vehicle replacement schedules, and work with the 
users to coordinate their equipment needs, so they will have the 
appropriate equipment to meet their operational requirements. 

 
D. CEA MAINTENANCE PROGRAM MISSION STATEMENT 
 

For the benefit of operators of municipal vehicles and equipment, in order 
to minimize interruptions of their operating schedule, we will perform 
repairs, preventive maintenance, new vehicle preparation, seasonal 
changeovers, and other special projects as necessary to insure safe and 
reliable vehicles and equipment. 

 
E. CEA CAPITAL REPLACEMENTS PROGRAM MISSION 

STATEMENT 
 

Prepare bid specifications and evaluate results to acquire new and 
replacement vehicles and equipment, so user departments have the 
equipment that best fits their operational requirements in a timely manner. 

 
 
 
 
 



 5 

III. CEA POLICY 
 

The replacement of equipment may be instituted and paid for by the Central 
Equipment Agency (CEA) if funds are available for that purpose within the CEA 
fund balance, provided such new equipment generally replaces equipment 
disposed of, or to be disposed of.  It is not the intent of this section that an exact 
replacement be made, but only that a piece of equipment be purchased to fulfill 
the same purpose as the equipment being replaced. 
 
Listing of anticipated replacements for the subsequent year must be approved by 
the CEA Review Committee and provided to the Common Council along with the 
annual budget. 
 
Additional equipment, to be used for increasing or augmenting the number of 
units on hand, must be approved by the CEA Review Committee and then the 
Common Council.  Funds therefore shall be provided by appropriation by the 
Common Council. 

 
IV. CEA COMMITTEE COMPOSITION  
 

A. CEA USERS GROUP COMMITTEE 
 
1. Group composition (members:  Deputy Director Police 

Department, Deputy Director Fire Department, Deputy Director 
Public Works, Deputy Director Utility Department, Director of 
Park, Rec., Facility and Grounds Management, Deputy Director 
Finance Department, or their designee.  Available resource:  CEA 
Fleet Maintenance Foreman Supervisor).  

2. Establish a group leader for conducting the meetings. 
3. Meeting schedule (at the call of the Deputy Director Public Works 

or any of the above listed members). 
4. Purpose: 

a. Address department concerns regarding the CEA 
fund. 

b. Review CEA policies and procedures and make 
recommendations to the CEA Review Committee. 

c. Review and gain an understanding of the current 
rate methodology. 

d. Discuss problems associated with vehicle 
maintenance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 6 

B. CEA REVIEW COMMITTEE   
  

The CEA Review Committee is a sub-committee of the Finance 
Committee. 
 
1. Group composition (members:  one member from both the 

Municipal Service Committee and the Finance Committee, the 
Director of Public Works, and the Director of Finance) or 
designee. 

2. Establish a Committee Chairperson responsible for conducting the 
meetings. 

3. Meeting schedule (quarterly basis or as needed). 
4. Roles and responsibilities: 

a. Approval of CEA related policies and procedures. 
b. Approval of special CEA requests outside the normal 

replacement schedule. 
c. Approval of CEA Equipment Replacements for next budget 

year. 
d. Annual review of vehicle usage reports. 

5. The CEA Review Committee reports to the Finance Committee for 
action and approval. 

 
V. PROCEDURES 
 

A. CITY VEHICLE ASSIGNMENT POLICY  
 

Positions currently utilizing City vehicles in the performance of their jobs 
are permitted to continue to do so. 

 
No department shall be allowed to change any employee who uses a 
vehicle on a regular basis from mileage reimbursement to use of a City 
vehicle without prior Common Council approval.  In making the 
determination of the appropriateness of providing a City vehicle, the 
Common Council shall give consideration to the following criteria: 
 
• Annual mileage — Does the employee drive approximately 4,000, or 

more, miles per year on City business? 
• Collective mileage — Are two or more people driving a total of 

approximately 6,000, or more, miles per year in performing job related 
functions?  (This guideline is not intended to be used to justify a 
vehicle for each person.  Rather, it attempts to address whether or not a 
“pool” car for the use of two or more employees might be 
appropriate). 

• Portion of work day spent away from the office — Does the employee 
spend an average of approximately one half, or more, of his or her  
their time in the field? 



 7 

• Material, equipment, etc. carried in the personal vehicle — Could 
carrying job-related items impact the efficiency, cause damage to a 
personal vehicle, or require a special vehicle? 

• Employee’s need for a vehicle that is readily identified as a City 
vehicle. 

• The need to transport other employees. 
 

Meeting any one of the above guidelines could provide justification for the 
Common Council to approve use of a City vehicle.  Partially meeting two 
or more might also provide that justification. 

 
Any additions (as opposed to replacements) of vehicles to the CEA fleet 
are to be funded by the requesting department and approved by the 
Common Council. 
 

B. VEHICLE ADDITION PROCEDURE  
 

1. Contact the CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman  Supervisor, he/she   
they will help in anyway possible in the following areas: 

 
• Finding type of vehicle needed. 
• Approximate purchase price of vehicle. 
• Set up demos on equipment. 
• Determine approximate rate structure. 

 
2. Requesting department must determine need and write justifications 

for approval at the CEA Review Committee. 
 

3. If approved by the CEA Review Committee a program 
Additions/Deletions form must be submitted for all additions to your 
fleet.  Follow the current year Finance Department guidelines to 
determine if the vehicle needs to be included in the Capital 
Improvement Program. 

 
At budget time, the Department must justify the need and get budget 
approval.  This is not a function of CEA. 
 

C. VEHICLE REPLACEMENT PROCEDURE    
 

The CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman  Supervisor will work with user 
department to determine life expectancy of vehicle. 
 
The year before the vehicle is to be replaced, and every year there after, it 
will be reviewed to determine if the vehicle should be replaced early or if 
life should be extended. 
 



 8 

If the vehicle is to be replaced early, the requesting department shall pay 
the full amount of all future scheduled payments, prior to replacement. 
 
When the CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman  Supervisor and the user 
department mutually determine that said replacement is appropriate, the 
vehicle will be replaced.  One criteria used for replacement of vehicles is 
the Vehicle Condition Evaluation Form found in Appendix B. 

 
The requesting department is responsible to determine if the vehicle’s life 
should be extended. 
 
The CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman  Supervisor will review usage with 
user department to determine if a similar vehicle is an appropriate 
replacement or if the vehicle should be changed to meet user department’s 
needs. 

 
If needs are the same as before, and a similar vehicle is required, CEA will 
write justification for replacement and budget replacement of vehicle upon 
approval by CEA Review Committee. 

 
If needs are different and the equipment is going to change, but dollar 
amounts are the same, the requesting department will write justification 
for the CEA Review Committee.  User department should also inform 
their committee of jurisdictions about the change before or at budget time. 

 
Once CEA Review Committee approval is gained, a program 
Addition/Deletion form must be submitted for all additions to your fleet.  
Follow the current year Finance Department guidelines to determine if the 
vehicle needs to be included in the Capital Improvement Program. 

 
FUNDING OF ADD-ON ITEMS   

 
There are three types of add-on items that Departments may 
request for their vehicles. 
 
a. Vehicle Add-On items include:  Lift gates, tool cabinets, ladder 

racks, sanders, safety light enhancements, etc.  Any user group 
that wishes to purchase vehicle add-on items must get CEA 
approval, budget and fund the items.  Equipment replacement 
cost will be increased to reflect the replacement value of the 
add-ons as they will be considered part of the equipment to be 
replaced in the future. 
 

b. Vehicle Accessories include:  AVL/GPS units, 
computers/MDC’s, radar units and cameras.  Any user group 
that wishes to add accessories to the vehicle must get CEA 



 9 

approval, budget and fund these items.  CEA staff will install 
the accessories as requested by the user group at the CEA 
approved hourly rate.  These accessories are not considered 
part of the vehicle and therefore will not be included in the 
vehicle replacement rate.  Repair cost associated with these 
accessories is the sole responsibility of the user group.  Once 
the vehicle is taken out of commission, the accessory items 
become the property of the user group for reuse in another 
vehicle or for resale. 

 
c. Radios:  Radios will be tracked separately with their own asset 

number and will have their own replacement schedule. 
 
DISPOSAL OF ASSETS     

 
The CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman  Supervisor and the end 
user will review equipment that is scheduled for replacement in the 
first quarter of the year before it is to be replaced.  They will 
review any other equipment that the user wants to move up due to 
cost concerns, obsolescence, lack of use or worn-out.  If the 
vehicle is replaced it must be disposed of as outlined in the City 
Purchasing Policy. 
All CEA equipment will be reviewed to achieve the best possible 
return on asset disposal.  The CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman 
Supervisor will review options (trade in, outright sale, sold as 
salvage, auction, etc.) with users to achieve this goal.  Equipment 
must be complete and in working order at time of disposal to 
achieve projected salvage value.  If equipment is not complete or 
not working due to neglect or abuse, the user may have to 
contribute to the replacement fund after review by CEA Review 
Committee.  
 
CONTINUED USE OF ASSETS    

   
All Labor/Material cost for the vehicle will be billed to the 
department through the normal CEA monthly billing process.  The 
Replacement Reserve Rate will be set at 20% (twenty percent) of 
the original Replacement Reserve Rate and will be added to your 
normal CEA monthly bill.  The purpose of this rate is to offset the 
potential decreased salvage value from holding the equipment past 
its expected life. 

 
SEASONAL VEHICLES 
 
These vehicles can be obtained from CEA.  Request for seasonal 
vehicles must be submitted to the Department of Public Works 
Deputy/Director of Operations no later than January 15 of the year 



 10 

required.  If your requested number of vehicles is reoccurring, the 
amount requested will be available for your use.  Additional or 
new requests for vehicles are subject to availability from vehicles 
identified for auction.  All Labor/Material cost for the vehicle will 
be billed to the requesting department on a monthly basis.  The 
Replacement Reserve Rate will be set at 20% (twenty percent) of 
the original Replacement Reserve Rate and will be added to your 
normal CEA monthly bill. 

 
New and ongoing requests for seasonal vehicles will be reviewed 
by the CEA Review Committee during their first quarter meeting. 

 
Seasonal vehicles will remain separate from other CEA vehicles.  
Vehicles identified for auction will be evaluated by the CEA Fleet 
Maintenance Foreman  Supervisor.  The best quality and fit for 
the user’s requirements will be retained from the existing seasonal 
fleet or current year auction vehicles. 

 
D. CAPITAL LEASE POLICY 
 

Upon the user’s request, the CEA will review the possibility of a short-
term lease to validate the need for a new piece of equipment.  This option 
may also be used for mid-term projects (1-5 years) where special 
equipment is needed and renting or purchase is not cost effective.  No 
lease agreements shall be entered into without the approval of the CEA 
Review Committee and the Director of Finance or designee. 

 
E. RENTING VS. PURCHASING EQUIPMENT 

 
EXISTING EQUIPMENT        
 
Upon a user’s request or scheduled replacement of a piece of 
equipment the CEA will review the equipment usage history.  The 
CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman  Supervisor will then work with 
the user to decide if the piece of equipment should be rented or 
replaced. 

 
NEW EQUIPMENT        
 
The CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman Supervisor will work with 
the user(s) to perform a cost benefit report to help determine if a 
new piece of equipment should be purchased or rented.  The user 
will then go through the normal budget process to acquire funds to 
rent or purchase the equipment. 

 
 



 11 

RENTING OUTSIDE CEA        
 
Rental of equipment is not allowed outside the city if equipment is 
available through the CEA unless an after hours emergency occurs.  
There maybe special circumstances that would warrant renting 
equipment.  These requests should go through the CEA Fleet 
Maintenance Foreman  Supervisor for approval. 
 
RENTAL OF CEA EQUIPMENT BY NON-CEA USER 
GROUPS 
 
CEA equipment may be available for rent by non-CEA user 
groups.  If available the user will be charged based on the 
established rental rate on file with the Municipal Services Office 
Manager.  Damage to equipment while being rented will be at user 
expense. 
 

F. PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE PROCEDURES 
 

Each vehicle needs an inspection prior to departure.   
 

Each day the vehicle should have a complete inspection by the Operator, 
checking fluids, lights, tires, and windshield wipers/washer as required 
every time they are fueled.  These inspections should be recorded inside 
the vehicle on the log provided. 
 
On vehicles that require a CDL for operation, a Pre-Trip/Post-Trip Record 
should be checked and signed by the driver stating you completed all 
safety inspections including the brakes. 

 
If the vehicle is damaged, contact the CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman  
Supervisor or his/her  their representative before taking the unit out. 
 
If there is a safety defect that will prevent safe operation of the vehicle, the 
vehicle must be repaired.  

 
If the repair is a minor non-safety related problem, write it up on the 
Vehicle Inspection Report.  Continue to document all defects each time 
you take the vehicle out. 

 
Deposit the Vehicle Inspection Reports into the box in the MSB Lunch 
Room or fax (832-5593) them to the CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman  
Supervisor.  Inter-departmental mail can take several days and is too 
slow. 
 



 12 

The CEA Lead Mechanic will notify user departments by email when the 
vehicles are scheduled for preventative maintenance. 

 
VEHICLE DELIVERY AND PICKUP    

 
It is the user’s responsibility to deliver a vehicle for maintenance.  
When the maintenance staff picks up and delivers the equipment it 
raises equipment repair cost.  Also mechanics are pulled from 
other work to make pickup and deliveries. 

 
HOURS OF SERVICE     

 
The Maintenance Shop at the Municipal Service Building is open 
from 11:00 p.m. Sunday through 9:00 p.m. on Friday.  During this 
time, we have maintenance personnel on call 24 hours a day. 

 
Schedule repairs whenever possible with the Lead Mechanic (920-
832-5827).  This will help balance the shop workload and insure 
your employees are not waiting for repairs. 

 
We will do minor repairs such as light bulbs, checking out 
problems, and giving advice regarding what course of action 
should be taken without an appointment. 

 
As a rule of thumb  Typically, the best time to have a vehicle 
repaired is after your shift, however, listed below are time frames 
that work out best for certain repairs. 

 
Car Driveability—Stalls, Rough Idles 7 a.m. – 3 p.m. at P.D. 
Oil Changes (Mon-Thurs)   3 p.m. – 11 p.m. 
Minor Repairs     Anytime 
Major Repairs     Anytime 
Small Fabrication Jobs   3 p.m. – 11 p.m. 
Large Fabrication Jobs   7 a.m. – 3 p.m. 
 
EMERGENCY BREAKDOWNS DURING WORKING 
HOURS     

 
During normal working hours, the CEA Mechanics will respond to 
all Service Calls relating to equipment owned by the City of 
Appleton. 

 
When calling in a Service Call, please give the equipment number, 
location, symptoms of problem, and if the vehicle is safely off the 
road. 

 



 13 

Stay in your equipment with the radio on.  The mechanics may 
need more information. 

 
At times when there is more than one Service Call, the CEA 
Division will prioritize them and respond in the order of severity, 
ie:  truck down in an intersection will be serviced before a truck 
not working correctly. 
 
Requests for Service Calls can be made via radio on the DPW 
frequency, or by calling 920-832-5827 for CEA equipment. 

 
Police cars between 7 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. Monday through Friday 
call 920-832-5886.  For police Service Calls after hours, please call 
the Communication Center and make arrangements to be towed to 
the Police Department lot. 
 
Park, Rec. Facilities and Grounds Management vehicles between 
6:30 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. Monday through Friday call 920-832-3922. 
 
EMERGENCY BREAKDOWNS AFTER HOURS 

 
If there is a weekend emergency, you can call the Police 
Department at 832-5500 and they will contact the CEA Fleet 
Maintenance Foreman  Supervisor. 
 

G. OIL CHANGE CODING 
 
Code Descriptions: 

 
   M Oil changed based on Mileage 
   H Oil changed based on Hour meter reading 
   G Oil changed based on Gallons of fuel used 
   D Oil changed based on calendar Date 
 

The CEA oil change program is based on the fuel reports that are 
generated using data from the City of Appleton’s fueling sites. 

 
Most oil change intervals are set according to manufacturer’s 
recommendations; therefore, nearly all of our equipment has a standard 
duty cycle with little variation.  Typically, the cycle for cars and trucks is 
done by mileage.  Hour meters are used on heavy equipment due to type 
of use, low mileage, and slow movement.  On small equipment, there are 
no fuel records, odometers or hour meters readings, so the oil change 
schedule is set up by date. 

 



 14 

Oil analysis is done on all of our equipment.  When we find problems due 
to fuel dilution or when additives are expended, we review the equipment 
usage.  If no trends are noted, we change the group of vehicles to the fuel 
usage system.  Tracking fuel gallons is practical with fleet vehicles such as 
Police cars.  Duties often require the patrol vehicle to idle for long periods 
of time. 

 
Any equipment that has not had an oil change in the past 12 months, will 
appear on the oil change report, and be scheduled for an inspection and oil 
changes. 

  
When oil samples are reviewed, the CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman  
Supervisor or his/her  their representative will custom tailor oil changes 
as needed. 

 
H. OPERATOR REQUIRED VEHICLE MAINTENANCE   

 
CARS AND LIGHT TRUCKS 
 
Pre-trip on cars and light trucks shall include: 

Daily:  Visual Check 
Tires 
Outside for dents or vandalism 
Water and oil leaks under vehicle 

 
When Fueled: Check oil in engine and transmission 

Check radiator system 
 

Any car is capable of going out of town, but please stop at the 
Garage for a quick inspection before you leave. 

 
OFF ROAD EQUIPMENT      

 
Daily: Check oil levels (i.e., Engine, Transmission, 

Hydraulic) 
Grease buckets and bearings 
Check tires for inflation (i.e., direction, 
tread) 
Check hydraulic hoses for damage 
Run equipment through complete cycle 
before using equipment 

 
COMMERCIAL VEHICLES  

 
Each time you get into a different vehicle you must give the 
vehicle a complete inspection.  This includes vehicles previously 
driven by other CDL drivers the same day. 



 15 

 
If you are not familiar with the Pre-Trip inspection, feel free to ask 
the Safety and Training Coordinator, Lead Mechanic, or CEA 
Fleet Maintenance Foreman  Supervisor to go through the 
procedure with you.  Failure to Pre-trip the vehicle places the 
responsibility of all previous damage that is unreported onto the 
person currently operating the vehicle.  If you are involved in an 
accident, your CDL vehicle will be inspected by a State Inspector 
and fines could be issued. 

 
A Post-Trip (After-Trip) Inspection Report must be filled out for 
each piece of equipment you have used.  You do a Post-trip 
Inspection at the end of the trip, day, or tour of duty on each 
vehicle that you have operated.  This includes filling out a Vehicle 
Condition Report listing any problems that you find. 

 
I. EQUIPMENT CLEANING   

 
It is the driver’s responsibility to clean the interior of the vehicle.  Armor 
All, window cleaner, and roll toweling is available in the Stock Room at 
the Municipal Service Building.  The vehicle should be cleaned of debris 
such as food, wrappers, pop cans, etc., at the end of each shift.  Placing 
wrappers, cans, and towels under the seats could cause an accident, injury, 
or fire.  Please keep vehicles clean. 

 
The driver is also responsible to clean the interior body of the truck.  
Unload all salt and spray out the body, clean the track of refuse trucks, and 
the mud and asphalt should be cleaned out of the corners of the body. 

 
City cars can be driven through the car wash at the Municipal Service 
Building anytime between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday 
through Friday.  If you have never used the car wash, please ask the CEA 
Representative to assist you for proper instruction on operation. 

 
There is a vacuum available by the lube rack to vacuum out the interiors of 
cars and trucks. 

 
Cost of outside cleaning services is the responsibility of the department 
using the equipment. 

 
 J. FINES AND OVERLOADS 
 

Any person receiving a citation while operating a City vehicle may be held 
responsible for the cost of the citation, citation points and is subject to 
disciplinary action.  The only exception would be if the City vehicle were 
cited for a defect such as a headlight out, broken mirror, etc. 



 16 

Trucks are restricted by the Gross Vehicle Weight Rating (GVWR) of the 
truck, individual axle weights, and posted weight limits.  The Municipal 
License Plate does not designate weight limits for trucks.   

 
It is the City’s policy that no truck shall be overloaded at any time.  It is 
the driver’s responsibility to ensure his truck is properly loaded. 
The only exception to the weight limits is the Sanitation Trucks that are 
permitted to be 10% overloaded at certain times of the year. 

 
Parking citations are the responsibility of the person using the city vehicle. 

 
K.   COMMERCIAL DRIVER’S LICENCE REQUIREMENTS       
  

 A Commercial Driver’s License (CDL) is required if any of the following 
criteria applies: 

 
• You drive any vehicle with a Gross Vehicle Weight Rating (GVWR) 

of 26,000 lbs. or greater. 
• The Gross Combination Weight Rating (GCWR) is more than 26,001 

lbs. 
• The vehicle is transporting hazardous materials. 
• You drive a vehicle designed to carry fifteen (15) or more people. 

 
What type of license you have also regulates what type of vehicle you can 
drive. 

 
• Class A licenses allows for operation of combination commercial 

motor vehicles which weigh 26,001 lbs. or more and towing trailers 
over 10,000 lbs. 

• Class B licenses are for operation of single commercial motor vehicles 
which weigh 26,001 lbs. or more.  These vehicles may tow trailers 
which weigh less than 10,000 lbs. 

• Class C licenses are for operation of commercial motor vehicles or 
combination vehicles which meet neither definition of Class A or B 
but are designed to carry sixteen (16) or more passengers or used to 
transport hazardous materials. 

 
Endorsements for specified types of operation are also issued.  These 
endorsements are: 

 
   “S” School Bus 

 “P” Passengers 
   “H” Hazardous 
   “N” Cargo Tank (Tanker) 
   “X” Combination Hazardous and Tanker 
 



 17 

All CDL holders must pass the Air Brake Test or they will have a 
restriction “L” on their license and will not be able to drive a vehicle with 
air brakes. 
A health physical is not required every two years if you are a Municipal 
Employee working for the City.   

 
 L. ACCIDENT AND INSURANCE PROCEDURES 
 

Every user department has their own guidelines, which may be more 
stringent than those listed below.  These guidelines are the minimum 
requirements: 

 
1. Any accident involving a City vehicle and a non-City vehicle or 

private property requires a Police Report.  Also, the City’s 
Claims/Lost Control Analyst Barb Limpert  Risk Manager must 
be notified immediately.  Review attached City of Appleton 
Accident Report and Investigating Procedures. 

 
2. Report accident to CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman  Supervisor 

and set up a time to have the vehicle inspected, even if there is no 
apparent damage. 

 
3. If vehicle is usable the CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman  

Supervisor will get two estimates of damage. 
 

4. The CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman  Supervisor or his/her  
their representative will set up an appointment to have the vehicle 
repaired when convenient with user department and body shop.  A 
loaner car may be available depending upon the season. 

 
5. CEA will check vehicle to insure repairs are safe and will return 

the car to user department. 
 

6. The City Wide Deductible = $ 5,000 (Comprehensive and 
Collision).  This is the maximum amount a department could be 
charged for an accident.  The actual amount could be between $ 0 
and $ 5,000 depending on culpability and the insurance company’s 
review of the accident.  In most cases there will be a cost.  This 
puts the responsibility for the accident with the user and the 
department. 

 
7. The repair costs are assigned to the equipment/vehicle and passed 

on to the department through the monthly billing process.  When, 
and if, reimbursement is received from the insurance company, the 
Human Resources Director sends the check to Finance for deposit 
in 6110.508200.  The Human Resources Director sends a copy of 



 18 

the check to the CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman  Supervisor.  
This credit is posted to the department who incurred the accident 
expense.  This credit would be in a form of a reduction to their 
monthly labor and materials bill. 

 
 

M. USE OF PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMENT BY OTHER 
DEPARTMENTS POLICY 

 
Departments wishing to borrow a piece of equipment from the Department 
of Public Works should contact the appropriate Operations Foreman  
Supervisor to make arrangements of such equipment.  In the absence of 
the Operations Foreman  Supervisor, please contact the Deputy Director 
of Operations.  Unless an emergency situation, a 24-hour notice is 
required to schedule equipment for your use. 

 
The employee signing out the vehicle will be responsible for turning in an 
Equipment Ticket indicating the date, employee number, equipment 
number, hours of use and their department.  The billing will be sent to the 
Department at the end of the month using an Inter-Departmental Billing 
form. 

 
N. CEA OUT OF TOWN VEHICLE POLICY 
 

Departments that have vehicles in the CEA Fleet may use their vehicles 
for out of town City business at their discretion.  Out of town fuel cost, 
material cost and labor cost maybe applied to a City issued procurement 
card or paid out of pocket.  Copies of the vehicle expense should be 
forwarded to the CEA Fleet Maintenance Foreman  Supervisor to be 
applied to the vehicle history. 
 
Departments that do not have vehicles in the CEA Fleet may either rent a 
car from a rental car agency or use a personal vehicle per the City’s Travel 
Policy. 
 
CEA does not have extra vehicles that can be rented on an as-needed 
basis.  Additions to your fleet or seasonal vehicle options are addressed in 
the Temporary/Seasonal Vehicle Policy. 
 

VI. CEA RATE STRUCTURE 
 

A. REPLACEMENT RESERVE RATE 
 

The CEA Capital Project Fund receives money from various City 
Departments, based on a useful life replacement payment schedule, for 
CEA owned vehicles and equipment used by the departments.  The funds 



 19 

received are then used to replace the item with a like kind item at the end 
of its useful life.  CEA funding for used equipment purchases will be 
allowed up to the Total Replacement Value paid into CEA. 

 
The monthly replacement rate is based on the expected useful life, 
anticipated salvage value, original purchase price, and the anticipated 
inflation rate earned by the fund.  The Finance Department provides the 
inflation rate and is reviewed yearly.  The anticipated salvage value and 
expected life are based on prior usage history and salvage values for 
similar class items. 
 

B. SURPLUS RESERVE FUND 
 
Replacement Reserve Funds collected in excess of the purchase price of a 
replacement vehicle/equipment in like kind will remain within the CEA 
fund balance.  Replacement Reserve Funds collected in anticipation of 
future replacement that does not happen will be returned to the fund that 
contributed to its replacement. 
 

C. MAINTENANCE COST 
 

CEA bills user departments monthly for repair work based on actual time 
and materials used. 
 
The per hour labor rate is based on budgeted costs for that year.  The labor 
rate is computed by Finance based on the approved budget for CEA and 
total billable labor hours for the year.  The rate is then adjusted at the 
beginning of the calendar year. 

 
Outside repair cost are billed to the departments at the actual cost paid by 
CEA. 

 
All labor costs associated with repairing the item including delivery and 
pickup of item to an external contractor, shipping of parts, trouble 
shooting, and ordering of replacement parts will be charge to the 
department. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 20 

VII. APPENDIX 
 

A. CEA FLEET CODES 
A Assessor’s Office 
B Facilities, Grounds and Maintenance  
C Central Equipment Agency (CEA) 
D Wastewater Treatment Plant 
E Traffic Division 
F Forestry Division 
G Reid Municipal Golf Course 
H Health Department 
I Inspection 
J Seasonal Fleet 
K Park, Facilities, Grounds and Maintenance 
L Municipal Service Building (DPW) 
M Water Meter Division (DPW) 
N Sanitation Division (DPW) 
O Engineering Division (DPW 
P Police Department 
Q Parking Ramps (DPW) 
R Fire Department 
S Stormwater (DPW) 
T Street Division (DPW) 
U Sewer Crew (DPW) 
V Valley Transit 
W Water Distribution (DPW) 
X Vehicles ready for auction 
Z Water Filtration 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 21 

B. VEHICLE CONDITION EVALUATION FORM 
 
 

MEDIUM/HEAVY DUTY (Greater than 1 Ton) 
 

Factor Points Description 
Age 1 Each year of chronological age. 
Miles/Hours 1 

1 
Each 5,000 miles of usage. 
Each 250 hours of usage. 

Type of 
Service 

1 
 
2 
 
3 
 
 
4 
 
 
5 

Standard use including basic job site duties, some light duty 
hauling. 
Standard use with attachments (compressors, light, etc.) including 
job site duties, standard load hauling, some towing. 
Above standard use including job site duties that include idling, 
standard load hauling, light trailer/equipment towing, leaf 
collection. 
Above standard use including job site idling and hauling above 
standard loads, towing equipment and heavy trailers, light snow 
removal. 
Extreme service, high job site idling and duties with attachments, 
heavy load hauling, heavy trailer/equipment towing, major snow 
removal duties, refuse collection, etc. (Examples:  Sideloader, 
Knuckleboom, Snow removal Truck) 

Reliability 
 
(PM work is 
not 
included) 

1 
 
2 
 
3 
 
4 
 
5 

In shop one time within three month time period, no major 
breakdowns or road calls. 
In shop one time within three month time period, 1 
breakdown/road call within 3 month time period. 
In shop more than twice within one month time period, no major 
breakdowns or road calls. 
In shop more than once within one month time period, two or 
more breakdowns/road calls within same time period. 
In shop more than twice monthly, two or more breakdowns within 
one month time period. 

M & R 
Costs 
(Accident 
repairs not 
included) 

1 
 
2 
3 
4 
5 

Maintenance costs are less than or equal to 20% of replacement 
cost. 
Maintenance costs are 21-40% or replacement costs. 
Maintenance costs are 41-60% of replacement costs. 
Maintenance costs are 61-80% of replacement costs. 
Maintenance costs are greater than or equal to 81% of replacement 
costs.  

Condition 1 
 
2 
 
3 
 

No visual damage or rust, good paint, good interior, no damage 
from add-on equipment, no body modification, good drive train. 
Minor imperfections in body and paint, interior fair (no rips, tears, 
burns), good drive train, minor body modifications. 
Noticeable imperfections in body and paint surface, some minor 
rust, fair interior, weak/fair drive train, minor body modifications, 



 22 

 
4 
 
 
 
5 

minor damage from add-on equipment.  
Previous accident damage, poor paint and body condition, major 
rust/corrosion, poor interior, damage from add-on equipment, 
moderate body modification evidence, one component of drive 
trail bad. 
Previous accident damage, poor paint and body condition, bad 
interior, drive train that is damaged or inoperative, major body 
modifications, major damage from add-on equipment and 
attachments. 

   
Point 
Ranges 

  

0-17 Excellent Do not replace 
18-22 Good Re-evaluate for next year’s budget. 
23-27 Satisfactory Qualifies for replacement this year if budget allows. 
28 + Poor Needs priority replacement. 

 
 
 
 

C. VEHICLE CONDITION EVALUATION FORM 
 
SEDANS  AND LIGHT TRUCKS 

 
Factor Points Description 
Age 1 Each year of chronological age. 
Miles/Hours 1 

1 
Each 10,000 miles of usage. 
Each 250 hours of usage. 

Type of  
Service 

1 
2 
3 
 
4 
5 

Standard duties as equipped from factory. 
Standard duties when used with occasional off road usage. 
Any vehicle that pulls trailers frequently, hauls heavy 
loads, and has frequent off road usage. 
Any vehicle involved in snow removal. 
Police, Fire and rescue vehicles. 

Reliability 1 
 
2 
 
3 
 
4 
 
5 

In shop one time within three month time period, no 
major breakdowns or road calls. 
In shop one time within three months time period, 1 major 
breakdown or road call in time period. 
In shop more than once within three month time period, 
one breakdown or service call in time period. 
In shop more than twice within one month time period, 
one or more breakdowns or service calls in time period. 
In shop more than twice monthly, two or more breakdown 
or service calls in time period. 

M & R 
Costs 

1 
 

Maintenance costs are less than or equal to 20% 
replacement cost. 



 23 

2 
3 
4 
5 
 

Maintenance costs are 21-40% of replacement costs. 
Maintenance costs are 41-60% of replacement costs. 
Maintenance costs are 61-80% of replacement costs. 
Maintenance costs are greater than or equal to 81% of 
replacement costs. 

Condition 1 
2 
 
3 
 
 
4 
 
 
 
5 

Good condition, fully functional. 
Fair condition, functional, minor imperfections to body 
and paint. 
Minor damage to body and paint visible from 15’ or more, 
minor damage to add on equipment.  Worn interior (one 
or more rip, tear, or burn) and weak or noisy drive train. 
Previous accident damage that was repaired, poor body 
condition, rust holes, bad interior, holes in seat or broken 
down.  Major damage to add on equipment or a bad drive 
train component.   
Extreme damage, inoperable. 

   
   
Point 
Ranges 

  

0-17 Excellent Do not replace 
18-22 Good Re-evaluate in one year 
23-27 Satisfactory Qualifies for replacement if budget can afford 
28 + Poor Needs priority replacement 
 

 
 

D. VEHICLE CONDITION EVALUATION FORM 
 

OFF ROAD EQUIPMENT 
 

Factor Points Description 
Age 1 Each year chronological age. 
Miles/Hours 1 

1 
1 

Each 5,000 miles of usage. 
Each 250 hours of usage. 
For every year of life. 

Type of 
Service 

1 
2 
 
3 
4 
 
5 

Standard duties as equipped from factory. 
Standard duties when used with attachments (sickle bar, 
backhoe, brush hog) 
Multiple duties based on seasons (snow, mowing, leaf) 
Extreme duty in harmful conditions (dust, landfill, salt 
loading, water) 
Heavy construction including snow plowing and removal. 

Reliability 1 
 
2 

In shop one time within three month time period, no major 
breakdowns or road calls. 
In shop one time within three months time period, 1 major 



 24 

 
3 
 
4 
 
5 
 

breakdown or road call in time period. 
In shop more than once within three month period, one 
breakdown or service call in time period. 
In shop more than twice within one month time period, 
one or more breakdowns or service calls in time period. 
In shop more than twice monthly, two or more 
breakdowns or service calls in time period. 

M & R 
Costs 

1 
 
2 
3 
4 
5 
 

Maintenance costs are less than or equal to 20% of 
replacement cost. 
Maintenance costs are 21-40% of replacement costs. 
Maintenance costs are 41-60% of replacement costs. 
Maintenance costs are 61-80% of replacement costs. 
Maintenance costs are greater than or equal to 81% of 
replacement costs. 

Condition 1 
2 
3 
4 
5 

Good condition, fully functional. 
Fair condition, functional. 
Minor damage, weak operating system. 
Severe damage, component’s not functional. 
Extreme damage, inoperable. 

   
Point 
Range 

  

0-17 Excellent Do not replace 
18-22 Good Re-evaluate in one year 
23-27 Satisfactory Qualifies for replacement if budget can afford 
28 + Poor Needs priority replacement 
 

E. EQUIPMENT RATING SHEET 
 

 
Vehicle #  Year  Mileage 

     
     
     
Factor Points    
     
Age     
     
Mileage     
     
Type of Service     
     
Reliability     
     
M&R Costs     
     



 25 

Condition     
     
Total Points     
     
Comments     
     
     
Point Range     
0-17 Excellent Do not replace   
18-22 Good Revaluate in one year. 
23-27 Satisfactory Qualifies for replacement if budget can afford. 
28 + Poor Needs priority replacement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

















































































































Resolution #6-R-21 
RESOLUTION CONDEMNING XENOPHOBIA, RACISM, AND VIOLENCE AGAINST 

THE ASIAN PACIFIC ISLANDER DESIAMERICAN (APIDA)COMMUNITY. 

Date: April 7, 2021 
Submitted By: Ald. Thao – District 7, Ald. Meltzer – District 2, Ald. Van Zeeland – District 5, Ald. Fenton 
– District 6, Ald. Schultz – District 9, Ald. Wolff – District 12 
Referred To: Safety & Licensing Committee 

WHEREAS, 23 million Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders account for 7 percent of the 
population in the United States; and 

WHEREAS, anti-Asian racism and hate are not new and have a long history in the United States; 
and 

WHEREAS, Asian Americans have far too long been the target of xenophobic policies, labor 
exploitation, hate crimes, and systemic racism in the United States; and 

WHEREAS, the use of anti-Asian rhetoric, especially as it intensified this past year, has resulted 
in Asian Americans being harassed, assaulted, and scapegoated for the COVID–19 pandemic; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Center for the Study of Hate and Extremism has found that anti-Asian hate 
crime in the 16 largest cities in the U.S. increased nearly 150% in 2020; and 

WHEREAS, according to the Stop AAPI Hate reporting center, nearly 4,000 hate incidents 
directed at AAPIs were reported between March 2020 and February 2021; and  

WHEREAS, in the last year, Asian American and Pacific Islander women made up 68 percent of 
the 3,800 incidents against Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders; and 

WHEREAS, since the start of year 2021, there has been a surge in anti-Asian attacks targeting 
elderly Asian Americans; and 

WHEREAS, the World Health Organization (WHO) and the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC) recognize that naming COVID–19 by its geographic location or linking it to a 
specific ethnicity perpetuates stigma; and 

WHEREAS, this modern form of discrimination falls within a long-established historical pattern 
of scapegoating or characterizing Asians as foreign, invasive threats, or as “the other” that has 
contributed to demonstrated negative health effects in our AAPI communities; and 

WHEREAS, the use of anti-Asian terminology and rhetoric related to COVID-19, such as the 
“Chinese Virus”, “Wuhan Virus”, and “Kung-flu” have perpetuated anti-Asian stigma; and 

WHEREAS, no one should live in fear in our communities across Wisconsin and the United 
States; and 



WHEREAS, the City’s AAPI residents are valued contributors to the City’s workforce, 
economy, and political representation; and 

WHEREAS, in Appleton, our thriving AAPI community is a major proportion of all of our 
residents and a thriving diverse community that spans languages, nationalities, ethnicities, 
cultures and more; and 

WHEREAS, Mayor Jake Woodford and Appleton Police Department Chief Todd Thomas 
recently announced that “hate has no home” in Appleton and they stand with the AAPI 
community in condemning all acts of discrimination and violence; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Appleton Common Council that the City of 
Appleton condemns violence of all forms against the APIDA community. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Appleton Common Council condemns all acts of racism, 
xenophobia, sexism, gender-based violence, discrimination, anti-Asian bias, scapegoating, and 
ethnic or religious intolerance. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Appleton Common Council encourages leaders at all 
levels to recommit the United States to serve as a world leader in building more inclusive, 
diverse, and tolerant communities. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Appleton Common Council encourages the Attorney 
General to work with State and local agencies and Asian American and Pacific Islander 
community-based organizations to prevent discrimination and expand culturally competent and 
linguistically appropriate education campaigns on public reporting of hate crimes. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Appleton Common Council recognizes the City of 
Appleton Police Department in its continuing work with local agencies and Asian American and 
Pacific Islander community-based organizations to prevent discrimination, expand culturally 
competent and linguistically appropriate education campaigns on public reporting of hate crimes, 
and build intentional relationships with the diverse communities. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Appleton Common Council encourages everyone to 
condemn anti-Asian bias, read, learn, and seek opportunities to experience cultures other than 
their own, review their practices that may create barriers or contribute to systemic racism, and in 
these ways and others seek to become a more welcoming, inclusive, anti-racist community. 

 



Hmong American Partnership expresses deep disappointment in Appleton 
Common Council after push back of resolution condemning xenophobia, 

racism, anti-Asian violence 
 
April 22, 2021 - The Hmong American Partnership of the Fox Valley (HAP) is deeply 
disappointed in the Appleton Common Council’s decision to push back Resolution #6-R-21 
condemning xenophobia, racism, anti-Asian violence, in hopes of bringing increased safety and 
solace for local AAPI communities in light of the pandemic. 
 
Kou Vang, HAP Board President, speaks on the collective pain and frustration that he and many 
community members shared after the Council moved to push the resolution back to “re-examine 
and change” the language that speaks about the lived experiences and narratives from many 
members of our AAPI communities:  
 
“Last night was a big blow to our Hmong community in Appleton. We feel betrayed by our local 
elected officials and feel we are not in their best interest, even though we have been here for 
over 45 years adding value to this City. It was one of the first times our elders and members 
spoke out in public to make their voices heard and, most importantly, bring the council’s 
attention to their traumatic and lived experiences. We all know that those who spoke last night 
were not even a fraction of our AAPI community.  
 
We watched each person stand up there reliving their traumatic experiences and making a plea 
to the Council for recognition, protection, and allyship to pass this resolution. Yet, they decided 
to push back the resolution to “re-examine and change” the language. Why do they want to 
change the collective narrative of an entire community? What harm will this do to these 
Alderpersons if they pass a resolution like this? Is it about them or the people? Now we know 
there is still more work to be done until we can achieve racial, equity, and economic justice for 
everyone in our community.” 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Kou Vang 
Board President 
Hmong American Partnership of the Fox Valley 
 
Media Contact: Kou Vang 
Phone Number: 920-205-4020 
 
 
About Hmong American Partnership of the Fox Valley: Originally founded as the Fox Valley 
Lao-Hmong Association in 1980 by settled refugees, the Hmong-American Partnership of the 
Fox Valley was established to help identify the needs of the local Hmong community and to 
coordinate services and educational activities. Today, Wisconsin ranks third in the United States 
for Hmong population, with more than 47,000 residents. About 4,700 Hmong call the Fox Cities 
home. Fifty percent of the Hmong population in the United States is under the age of 18. There 
are 1200 Hmong children in the Appleton Area School District and another 500 in Neenah, 
Menasha, Kaukauna, Kimberly, Little Chute, Hortonville and Wrightstown.  
 





Two locations: 
408 ½ West Wisconsin Avenue, Appleton WI 54911 

2439 North Holton Street, Milwaukee WI 53212 
 

 

 

April 27, 2021 
 
Statement in support of Appleton’s Asian American and Pacific Islander community.  
 
Diverse & Resilient is an organization serving community members marginalized by violence whether that be domestic 
and sexual violence or hate violence and community bias. We center our work on those furthest from justice and those 
further marginalized by systems that were not designed with us or for us. We work for the liberation of all LGBTQ, Black, 
Indigenous, Asian, Latinx and other People of Color. We stand in solidarity with all movements who fight for liberation– 
including Black Lives Matter, Indigenous rights, immigrant rights, reproductive rights, and more.  Our action today with 
this statement is in support of the Asian American and Pacific Islander community in Appleton.  We are not free until we 
are all free. 
 
We are saddened and angered over the harm caused by members of the Appleton City Council last week by refusing to 
take a vote on a resolution condemning the racism, xenophobia, and violence against our Asian American and Pacific 
Islander (AAPI) community. Alderperson Maiyoua Thao crafted this resolution with input from others in the Asian-
American Community. She also sought and received support from Alderpersons Meltzer, Van Zeeland, Fenton, Schultz 
and Wolff who co-sponsored the bill.  

Alderperson Thao created a resolution based on community need. She invited members of the AAPI community to come 
to Council and share their experiences as this resolution was brought before City Council. We heard heartbreaking 
stories of Hmong individuals, including children and elders being targeted with hate because of their Asian identities.  
This resolution was written by a woman of color for people of color based on her experiences listening to community.  

However, after hearing the testimony of AAPI constituents and allies, Alderperson Bill Siebers decided to send the 
resolution back to committee to make changes thus halting its passage. Some alderpersons have objected to the 
language of this resolution stating it is inflammatory. We’ve even heard from the Council President Matthew Reed that 
he does not support all these “social justice” issues coming before Council.  

At Diverse & Resilient, we know that it is racism that is inflammatory, not the calling out of it. Sexism is also 
inflammatory. Fighting for social justice issues is at the core of what we do at Diverse & Resilient. In the middle of a 
pandemic, the Appleton Health Department and the Appleton City Council passed a resolution addressing racism as a 
public health issue. Diverse & Resilient is a public health agency. We serve the Queer, Trans, Black, Indigenous, Asian, 
Latinx and all People of Color primarily because we know that these marginalized communities are greatly impacted by 
barriers in health care. And those barriers include not living safely in a community that values and supports them.  

 

We at Diverse & Resilient call upon the Safety and Licensing Committee and the Appleton City Council to pass the AAPI 
Resolution submitted by Alderperson Thao exactly as it was written. Trying to change this resolution to provide a white 
perspective is not only not helpful, it is harmful. The white perspective is often centered. It is time to center the voices of 
those most impacted by this violence, the AAPI community.  

                             IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

Contact: 
Kathy Flores  

Director of Anti-Violence Programs  
Diverse & Resilient 

kflores@diverseandresilient.org 
414-342-9032 



 
 

Statement in Support of City of Appleton Resolution #6-R-21 

 

The Boys & Girls Clubs of the Fox Valley joins its long-time community partner, the 
Hmong American Partnership, and the broader Asian American and Pacific Islander 
(AAPI) community in being deeply disappointed by the Appleton Common Council's 
decision to not immediately pass Resolution #6-R-21 condemning xenophobia, racism, 
and anti-Asian violence in hopes of bringing increased safety and solace for AAPI 
communities in light of the pandemic. 

The BGCFV is honored to serve a racially and ethnically diverse population of young 
people. The BGCFV recognizes that our goal of helping the Fox Cities become a great 
place for ALL kids to grow and thrive depends upon our community's collective efforts to 
ensure young people feel welcome, valued, safe, and know they belong. We stand with 
the more than 1,000 children, youth, and families we serve and employ who identify as 
AAPI. We stand against the structures, biases, stereotypes, and hate that perpetuate 
and fuel discrimination and assaults on the AAPI community. 

The referral back to committee of Resolution #6-R-21 has led to feelings of betrayal, a 
loss of trust, and heightened the fear our AAPI community members face every day. 
The BGCFV believes the Common Council should have done all it could to avoid this 
result. The current situation is unacceptable and requires a quick and convincing 
response. Furthermore, BGCFV supports the passing of the resolution, introduced by 
Alderperson Maiyoua Thao and 5 other alderpersons, with its original language. 

The Boys & Girls Clubs of the Fox Valley understands the paramount importance of 
teaching our members about what is acceptable and what is not inside our Clubs. In 
much the same way, the City of Appleton has the responsibility to clarify the standards it 
expects of its residents. Resolution #6-R-21, as presented at the April 21st meeting of 
the Common Council, is an important step forward to meeting that responsibility.   



 

  
 





Timothy M. Hanna 
3118 E. Sableridge Dr. 
Appleton, WI  54913 
 
Re: Resolution #6-R-21 
 
To Members of the Appleton Common Council: 

I am writing to you today to talk about culture.  Because you are an elected member of the Appleton 
Common Council you are viewed as a leader in the community.  As  leaders in the community not only 
your decisions, your “votes” matter, but also your behavior and the way you go about the City’s business 
matters.  Your collective actions go a long way in setting the culture in our community.  It’s one of the 
reasons why we worked to develop the Code of Conduct so many years ago that you voted to reaffirm at 
the Common Council’s organizational meeting last week.  How you treat each other matters.  How you 
treat staff matters.  How you treat members of the public matters.  This collective behavior lends itself 
to building a welcoming culture of respect within the wider community that in turn leads to economic 
success for our citizens and the community as a whole. 

From a big picture point of view and despite the hardships brought on by the pandemic we are still in a 
competitive economic situation.  As a community, as a region and as a State we are in competition for 
people and talent.  The fact is that amongst all the states in the country Wisconsin consistently ranks 
near, or at the bottom when it comes to racial equity.  There are many reasons why this is just simply 
unacceptable. 

The results of the 2020 US census will likely determine that as a country we will have a majority-minority 
population.  The census will show that the makeup of the State’s population continues to diversify, 
especially in our school-age population.  Despite this trend the State continues to struggle to attract a 
skilled and educated workforce to fill critical roles in our economy.  These skilled and educated people 
are looking for communities that offer a high quality of life that includes opportunities to experience 
diversity in its broadest sense, i.e. arts, culture, cuisine, etc.  They are also looking for places where they 
feel welcomed, respected, valued and supported. 

In order to change not only the perception, but the reality that Wisconsin is not a welcoming place for 
all people, we need to begin to change the culture.  And that cultural change can best be started at the 
local level.   This is where you come in.  Your actions, individually, as well as collectively serve to support 
the kind of community and culture so many people are looking for.   

In the midst of all the personal angst over the process surrounding Resolution #6-R-21 I wanted to give 
you a somewhat broader perspective.  I have attempted to give you an economic perspective around 
this issue.  However, make no mistake, this is not just an economic issue, it’s also a human issue and is 
personal to many in our community…personal, not political.  That should be taken seriously when 
considering your actions on this resolution.  I urge your support for this resolution which will be another 
positive statement about what we expect life to be in a community where every person is respected, 
valued, supported and welcomed. 

Thank you for your consideration and for your service to this great City. 

         Tim Hanna 



#7-R-21 Outdoor Alcohol Service 
 

Submitted By: Alderperson Smith, District 10 
4-21-2021 
Referred To: Safety & Licensing Committee 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Appleton currently has a process administered by the City Clerk wherein 
an establishment licensed under Ch. 125 Wis. Stats. may seek a temporary amendment of its 
premises description to allow for sales in certain outdoor areas including private parking lots 
and within the amenity strip as defined in Sec. 9-256 of the Municipal Code. 
  
Then in the NOW THEREFORE, 
  

1)   City staff shall process applications to temporarily amend the premises description of an 
establishment licensed under Ch. 125 Wis. Stats. as expeditiously as possible such that 
the application is reviewed by the Common Council within fourteen (14) days of receipt. 
Temporary amendments to the premise’s description may be granted from the time of 
issuance to October 2, 2021. The applicant shall be advised in writing and acknowledge 
that the permission granted is temporary in nature and expires on October 2, 2021. 
  

2)   That the use of sidewalk cafes is temporarily amended to allow for expanded use of the 
amenity strip and hours of service as follows: 
  
Sec. 9-262(a)(1) The parameters of the sidewalk café shall be limited to the area of the 
amenity strip located immediately in front of the establishment and shall not extend 
beyond the width of the property line unless written permission is granted by the 
immediately adjacent property owner to also use the amenity strip immediately in 
front of that owner’s property. 
  
Sec. 9-262(b)(4) The permit holder may begin serving alcoholic beverages in the 
sidewalk café at 11:00 a.m. All alcoholic beverages must be removed from the sidewalk 
café by 9:30 p.m. 
  
These changes would remain in effect until October 2, 2021 and, due to their temporary 
nature, would not be codified in the Appleton Municipal Code. 

 



 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

 

 

TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee  

 

FROM: Lt. Adam Nagel 

 

DATE: 03/10/2021 

 

RE: Denial of Camilo T. Sebentsfeldt   

 
 

 

Committee Members:  

 

As designee for the police department, I am requesting that the Safety and Licensing Committee 

recommend to the Common Council to deny Camilo T. Sebentsfeldt application for an operator’s 

license.  

It is not employment discrimination for a licensing agency to deny an applicant based on 

conviction record where the circumstances of the conviction substantially relate to the 

circumstances of the particular licensed activity. 

No license or permit related to alcohol beverages may be issued to a habitual law offender where 

the circumstances of the offenses substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular 

licensed activity. A person is a habitual law offender if they have 1 felony conviction or repeat 

misdemeanor or ordinance violations. 

An applicant is allowed an opportunity to show evidence of rehabilitation and fitness to engage 

in the licensed activity, unless the conviction(s) are for exempt offenses.  The applicant may 

produce the following to conclusively demonstrate their rehabilitation and fitness from a given 

conviction: 

A copy of the local, state, or federal release document; and either  

(1) a copy of the relevant department of corrections document showing completion of 

probation, extended supervision, or parole; or  

(2) other evidence that at least one year has elapsed since release from any local, state, or 

federal correctional institution without subsequent conviction of a crime along with 

evidence showing compliance with all terms and conditions of probation, extended 

supervision, or parole. 

Camilo Sebentsfeldt was arrested in December of 2016 for crimes against children and was 

eventually convicted of 2 counts of violations of Wis. Stat. §948.11(2)(am), Exposing a Child to 

Harmful Descriptions. He was originally ordered to 3 years of probation, which was eventually 

revoked and in January of 2020 he was sentenced to prison for a total of 68 months.  The 

sentences on the 2 counts were for 16 months of initial confinement followed by 18 months of 

extended supervision on each count, to be served consecutively.  A review of records indicates 



that Camilo Sebentsfeldt is currently on extended supervision for these 2 offenses.  It is unknown 

if one year has elapsed since his release from a correctional facility.    

Camilo Sebentsfeldt’s conduct related to the above 2 felony convictions includes that on 

December 13, 2016 Camilo T. Sebentsfeldt was arrested for attempting to have sexual contact 

with 13 and 16-year-old girls  During this investigation, it was discovered that Camilo 

Sebentsfeldt propositioned sex acts with 13 and 16 year old girls on Facebook. Camilo 

Sebentsfeldt then attempted to meet these girls in person to have these sex acts performed. 

Investigators learned that Camilo Sebentsfeldt was also attempting similar acts with multiple 

other young girls at the same time. Because violations of Wis. Stat. §948.11 are not exempt 

offenses, Camilo Sebentsfeldt is allowed an opportunity to show evidence of rehabilitation and 

fitness to engage in the sale of alcohol. 

I find that both of these convictions for internet crimes committed against children to be 

substantially related to the sale of alcohol.  When a person attempts to commit a sexual based 

crime or a crime against a child it shows a lack of character and judgment and a tendency to 

target vulnerable people. Being a responsible seller of alcohol requires good character and 

judgment particularly around intoxicated and vulnerable people.  

Because Camilo Sebentsfeldt was convicted of two felonies that are substantially related to the 

ability to responsibly sell alcohol, I find Camilo Sebentsfeldt to be a habitual law offender. 

Also for consideration, as it relates to Camilo Sebentsfeldt’s rehabilitation and fitness to engage 

in the responsible sale of alcohol, during his period of probation on the above 2 felony 

convictions, he was found guilty of a citation for damage to property while at the Outagamie 

County Jail. . Also, while on probation for those offenses, Camilo violated his probation rules on 

at least four different occasions. 

 

Based on the foregoing reasons, the Appleton Police Department recommends that the Safety 

and Licensing Committee recommend to the Common Council to deny Camilo Sebentsfeldt’s 

application for an operator’s license. 

 

 

Respectfully:  

 

 

Lt. Adam Nagel #9191 

Appleton Police Department    































Auxiliary Questionnaire
Alcohol Beverage License Application

Submit to municipal clerk

lndividual's Full Narre @lease print) (last name)

ToH ru ST0 rv
, (fist name)

,{uan oo
(middle nane)

{ostp L
Home Address ( st reet/route)

27q3 sT frruu DR,.

Post Office

Browp
CitV

6r&p E,qv
State

tJt
zip 6e4s

S/3 /t
lrluie Phone I,Jumb€r

cil( 'Qao-od/-doEs
Age

1"7
Date of Brrth /

e-/e /rqrq Bro
Place of Birth

f he above named individual provides the following information as a person who is (check one)

I Applying for an alcohol beverage license as an individual.

which is making application for an alcohol beverage license.

fhe above named individual provides the following information to the licensing authority:

1 How long have you continuously resided in Wsconsin prior to this date? (r7 Vfll.
2'HaveyoueVerbeenconvictedofanyoffenses(otherthantrafFicunrelate

violation of any federal laws, any Wisconsin laws, any laws of any other states or ordinances of any county
or municipality? I ves Kno
lf yes, give law or ordinance violated, trial cour1, trial date and penalty imposed, and/or date, description and
status of charges pending. (f more room is needed. continue on reverse side ol this form.)

3. Are charges for any offenses presently pending against you (other than traffic unrelated to alcohol beverages)
- for violation of any federal laws, any Wsconsin laws, any laws of other states or ordinances of any county or

municipality?

lf yes, describe status of charges pending
4. Do you hold, are you making applicaton for or are you an officer, director or agent of a corporationtnonpiJiii

organization or member/manager/agent of a limited liability company holding or applying for any other alcohol
beverage license 9r permit?
lf yes, identify

and Type of L

I ves E'ruo

f,ves I ruo

5. Do you hold and/or are you an officer, director, stockholder, agent or employe of any person or corporaton or
member/manager/agent of a limited liability company holding or applying for a wholesale beer permit,
brewery/winery permit or wholesale liquor, manufacturer or rectifier permit in the State of Wsconsin? fr V"r I ruo

"9,1n *(NameofwholesaleLicensed Permitteel @

READ CAREFULLY BEFORE SIGNING: Under penalty provided by law, the undersigned states that each of the above questions has
been truthfully answered to the best of he knowledge of the signer. The signer agrees that he/she is the person named in the foregoing
application; that the applicant has read and made a complete answer to each question, and that the answers in each instance are true and
correct The undersigned further understands that any license issued contrary to Chapter 125 of the Wsconsin Statutes shall be void, and
under penalty of state law, the applicant may be prosecuted for submitting false statements and affidavits in connection with this applica-
tion Any person who knowingly provides materially false information on this application may be required to more than $1 000

Ernp-loyer's Narne

Hrcut flnto ilu, ,tt
Employe/s Address

3605 ry'a-..rbu
Employer's Narne

AT-103 (R 7-18) Wisconsin 0epartment of Revenue

I A member of a which is making application for an

h of

Named individual must list in chronological order last two employers.



Schedule for Appointment of Agent by Corporation / Nonprofit
Organization or Limited Liability Company

Submit to municipal clerk.

All corporations/organizations or limited liability companies applying for a license to sell fermented malt beverages and/or intoxicating liquor
must appoint an agent. The following questions must be answered by the agent. The appointment must be signed by an officer of the
corporation/organization or one member/manager of a limited liability company and the recommendation made by the proper local official

I I lown

f vittage

ffi citv

The undersigned duly authorized officer/member/manager of
or Limited Liabiltty Cotnpany)

To the governing body of

located at

"' Aff-lt^

a corporation/organization or limited liability company making application for an alcohol beverage license for a premises known as

h"- AHtB",=^,,r,
(o ,(TrccJe Name)

lpct- t

^.

appoints

])v3 s"jr. 'ff;;';:"ff;.n*" G8. roJ+ st/?/t
(Hotne Address ol Al2pointd Agent)

to act for the corporation/organization/limited liability company with full authority and control of the premises and of all business relatve
to alcohol beverages conducted therein. ls applicant agent presently acting in that capacity or requesting approval for any corporation/
organization/limited liability company having or applying for a beer and/or liquor license for any other location in Wsconsin?

fr Ves , -[ ruo lf so, indicale the corporate name(s)/limlg d lia\ri1fi company(ies) and municipality(ies).

H t 6g un n a Ho or i,os P^tb < @n, lru
ls applicant agent subject to completion of the responsible beverage server training course? f Ves X No

How long immediately prior to making this application has the applicant agent resided continuously in Wisconsin? b I V /lS------------b7
Place of residence last year

For:

/ Organizatiotl / Limitd Liability Cornpany)

(Signature al Officer / Mefitber / Manage)

Any person who knowingly provides materially false information in an application for a license may be required to forfeit not more than
$1,000

By

ACCEPTANCE BY AGENT

, /h,*Ag, fr l aS/b^ , hereby accept this appointment as asent ror the

corporation/organization/li mited

(Print / Type Agen s Name)

liability company and assume full responsibility for the conduct of all business relative to alcohol
bevera.geg conducted on the pr for the corporation/organization/li mited liability company

/-ao-al Agent's age b7
Date or bir:r, 2 /3//qf /

APPROVAL OF AGENT BY MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
(Clerk cannot sign on behalf of Municipal Official)

I hereby ceftify that I have checked municipal and state criminal records. To the best of my knowledge, with the available information,
the character, record and reputation are satisfactory and I have no objection to the agent appointed.

Approved on
(Town Chair, Village President, Police Chie1

AT-104 (R 4-18)

(Date)
by

(Signature ol Propet L&al Official)
Title

Wsconsrn Department ot Revenue

llout A (W ]fo ,t1 h/ -E T #.'

. v/\-

Address



06/30/2021

























 
  
 

"...meeting community needs...enhancing quality of life ." 
 

 

TO:  Safety & Licensing Committee 

FROM:  APD Chief Todd Thomas 

SUBJECT: Electric Scooter Regulation 

DATE:  April 23, 2021 

 
 
 

The City of Appleton has agreed to a pilot program to allow Electronic Scooter usage in the 

city.  Currently, the agreement and the regulations included in it, are not enforceable or included in 

the Municipal Code of the City of Appleton.  Municipalities are able to regulate electric scooters in a 

manner consistent with bicycle regulations.  In order to create the safest possible situation for the 

operation of electric scooters in Appleton, it is necessary to add protections to our Code consistent 

with those already applicable to bicycle operation, including a definition of electric scooter and the 

prohibition of their operation on downtown sidewalks and parking ramps. 

Furthermore, because there are inconsistencies between our Code and the Schedule of Deposits 

relating to Chapter 19 offenses, it is only logical at this time to make the appropriate corrections.  

Specifically, Sec. 19-162 provides a maximum penalty of five dollars ($5.00) for violations of 

Sections 19-161 through 19-200 but the Schedule of Deposits creates a twenty dollar ($20.00) 

forfeiture for violations of Sections 19-164 through 19-200.  In order to reconcile this, I recommend 

removing from the Schedule of Deposits the penalties for Sections 19-164 through 19-200 and 

thereby make the $5.00 penalty provision of Sec. 19-162 meaningful. 

Based on the foregoing, and in collaboration with the City Attorney’s Office, I am 

recommending that the Schedule of Deposits be amended to remove Sections 19-164 through 19-200 

and the following changes to the Municipal Code.   

 

 

  



 

 
 
 
 

ARTICLE V.  BICYCLES, ELECTRIC SCOOTERS, AND PLAY VEHICLES* 
 

DIVISION 1. GENERALLY 
 

Sec. 19-161. Definitions. 
 
 The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in 
this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 
 
 Bicycle means every device propelled by the feet acting upon pedals and having wheels any two (2) of which are 
not less than fourteen (14) inches in diameter. 
 
 Bicycle establishment or bicycle dealer means any business operated by any person wherein new or used bicycles 
or bicycle parts are purchased, sold, exchanged, bartered, repaired, remodeled, dismantled or junked. 
 
 Bicycle lane means that portion of a roadway set aside by the governing body of any city, town, village or county 
for the exclusive use of bicycles or other modes of travel where permitted under W.S.A. §349.23(2)(a), and so 
designated by appropriate signs and markings.  Bicycle lanes are designated on the following streets: the area bounded 
by Franklin Street on the north; Lawrence Street on the south, including any ramps leading down into Jones Park; 
Richmond Street on the west; and Drew Street on the east. 
 
 Bicycle route means any bicycle lane, bicycle way or highway which has been duly designated by the Common 
Council and which is identified by appropriate signs and markings. 
 
 Bicycle way means any path or sidewalk or portion thereof designated for the use of bicycles by the Common 
Council. 
 
 Carrier means any device attached to the bicycle designed for carrying articles. 
 
 Curb means the lateral boundaries of that portion of a street designed for the use of vehicles, whether marked by 
a curb or not. 
 
 Driver or operator means every person who drives or is in actual physical control of a vehicle. 
 
 Electric scooter means a device weighing less than 100 pounds that has handlebars and an electric motor, is 
powered solely by the electric motor and human power, and has a maximum speed of not more than 20 miles per hour 
on paved level surface when powered solely by the electric motor. 
 
 Minibike means a two- (2-) wheeled motorized vehicle with less than twenty- (20-) inch wheels, usually designed 
for trails and off-street use. 
 
 Motor bike means a vehicle of the bicycle or tricycle type propelled by a motor. 
 

 Motor vehicle means every vehicle which is self-propelled and every vehicle which is propelled by electric power 
obtained from overhead trolley wires, but not operated upon rails. 
 
 Owner means a person, other than a lienholder, having the property in or title to a vehicle. The term includes a 
person entitled to the use and possession of a vehicle subject to security interest in another person, but excludes a 
lessee under a lease not intended as security. 
 



 Pedestrian means any person afoot. 
 
 Reflector means any device constructed of metal or glass or plastic that has a diameter of at least two (2) inches 
of surface area, which will be visible from all distances within fifty (50) feet to five hundred (500) feet directly in front 
of a motor vehicle at night displaying lawfully lighted headlights, such device to be so constructed as to show a red 
color when struck by motor vehicle lights as stated.  Such device shall be affixed to the rear of the bicycle at any point 
on the frame or mudguard at a height between axis of the wheel and the bottom of the rider’s seat. 
 
 Registration tag means a metal plate or sticker indicating that a bicycle is registered. 
 
 Right-of-way means the right of one (1) vehicle or pedestrian to proceed in a lawful manner in preference to 
another vehicle or pedestrian approaching under such circumstances of direction, speed and proximity as to give rise 
to danger of collision unless one grants precedence to the other. 
 
 Sidewalk mans that portion of a street between the curblines or the lateral lines of a roadway and the adjacent 
property lines, intended for use by pedestrians. 
 
 Street or highway means the entire width between the boundary lines of every way publicly maintained when any 
part thereof is open to the use of the public for purposes of vehicular travel. 
 
 Trailer means a unit designed to be towed by a bicycle and not an integral part of a bicycle. 
 
 Vehicle means every device in, upon or by which any person or property is or may be transported or drawn upon 
a highway, excepting devices used exclusively upon stationary rails or tracks. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(1); Ord 120-12, §1, 10-23-12) 
Cross reference(s) - Definitions and rules of construction generally, §1-2. 
*State law reference(s) – Authority to require registration of bicycles, W.S.A. §349.18(b)(3). 

 
Sec. 19-162. Penalty for violation of article. 
 
 Any person found guilty of a violation of this article shall be subject to a penalty of not more than five dollars 
($5.00) and removal of the bicycle registration tag for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(32)) 
 
Sec. 19-163.  Compliance with article; responsibility of parents. 
 
 (a) It is unlawful for any person to perform any act forbidden or fail to perform any act required in this article. 
 
 (b) The parent of any child and the guardian of any ward shall not authorize or knowingly permit any child or 
ward to violate any of the provisions of this article. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(29)) 
 
Sec. 19-164.  Operation of skateboards as prohibited in certain areas. 
 
 No person shall operate, ride or propel a skateboard, inline skates and roller skates, on any portion of the following 
streets or public property: 
 
 (1) The area bounded by Franklin Street on the north; Lawrence Street on the south, including any ramps leading 

down into Jones Park; Richmond Street on the west; and Drew Street on the east. 
 
 (2) All City-owned parking ramps and parking lots. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(13)(c); Ord 89-92, §1, 8-20-92) 
Cross reference(s)--Citation for violation of certain ordinances, §1-17; schedule of deposits for citation, §1-18. 
 
Sec. 19-165.  Reserved. 
 



 
 
Editor’s note: Ord 75-94, §1, adopted July 9, 1994, repealed §19-165, which pertained to operation of skateboards, 
inline skates, roller skates and bicycles prohibited on certain pedestrian bridges.  
 
Secs. 19-166 – 19-175.  Reserved. 



DIVISION 2. BICYCLES AND ELECTRIC SCOOTERS 
 

Secs. 19-176 – 19-180.  Reserved. 
 

Sec. 19-181. Unclaimed or unidentified bicycles and electric scooters. 
 
 All abandoned bicycles and electric scooters and unidentified bicycles and electric scooters remaining in the hands 
of the Police Department may, at the end of thirty (30) days, be sold at public auction or by any other method allowed 
by §12-101. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(11)) 
 
Sec. 19-182. Applicability of traffic regulations to persons operating bicycles and electric scooters. 
 
 Every person operating a bicycle or electric scooter upon a roadway shall be subject to all of the duties applicable 
to the driver of a vehicle by the laws of this state declaring rules of the road applicable to vehicles or by the traffic 
ordinances of the City applicable to the driver of a vehicle, except as to special regulations in this article and except 
as to those provisions of laws and ordinances which by their nature have no application. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(12)) 
 
Sec. 19-183. Riding bicycle or electric scooter on sidewalk. 
 
 (a) Bicyclists and electric scooter operators exercising due care may operate their bicycle or electric scooter upon 
the sidewalk, except on the sidewalks on College Avenue between Drew Street and Badger Avenue (this exception 
shall not apply to law enforcement officers operating designed police bicycles). 
 
 (b) It shall be unlawful for any person operating a bicycle or electric scooter on the sidewalk to attempt to pass 
another person going in the same direction on the walk without giving an audible signal as warning and until it becomes 
evident that the person so warned is aware of the approach of such person operating the bicycle or electric scooter.  
Pedestrians shall at all times have the right-of-way upon sidewalks and, if necessary, the person operating such bicycle 
or electric scooter shall vacate the sidewalk or dismount and walk the bicycle or electric scooter to prevent an accident.  
Any person operating a bicycle or electric scooter upon the sidewalk must have the bicycle or electric scooter under 
control at all times. 
 
 (c) Electric scooters shall not be operated in all City-owned parking ramps. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(13)(a), (b), ord 150-07, §1, 11-13-07) 
 
Sec. 19-184. Riding bicycle or electric scooter on roadway. 
 
 Whenever a bicycle or electric scooter is operated upon a roadway the following rules apply: 
 
 (1) Unless preparing to make a left turn, every person riding a bicycle or electric scooter  upon a roadway carrying 

two- (2- ) way traffic shall ride within three (3) feet of the right side of the unobstructed traveled roadway.  
On one- (1-) way roadways, the operator of the bicycle or electric scooter shall ride within three (3) feet of 
the right side or left side of the unobstructed traveled roadway.  Every person operating a bicycle or electric 
scooter upon a roadway shall exercise due care when passing a standing vehicle or one (1) proceeding in the 
same direction, allowing a minimum of three (3) feet between his bicycle or electric scooter and the vehicle. 

 
 (2) Persons riding bicycles or electric scooters upon a roadway shall ride single file on all roadways which have 

centerlines or lane lines indicated by painting or other markings, and in all unincorporated areas. On 
roadways not divided by painted or other marked centerlines or lane lines, bicycle or electric scooter 
operators may ride two (2) abreast in incorporated areas. 

 
 (3)  No person may operate a bicycle or electric scooter upon a roadway where a sign is erected indicating that 

bicycle or electric scooter riding is prohibited. 
 
 (4) The operator of any bicycle or electric scooter overtaking another bicycle, electric scooter, or vehicle 



proceeding in the same direction shall pass such vehicle at a safe distance at a place on the roadway other 
than an intersection and without leaving the traveled portion of the road. 

(Code 1965, §10.08(14)) 
 

Sec. 19-185. Riding bicycle or electric scooter on bicycle lane. 
 
 (a) Unless two- (2-) way traffic is authorized under subsection (b) of this section, every person operating a 
bicycle or electric scooter upon a bicycle lane shall ride in the same direction in which vehicular traffic on the lane of 
the roadway nearest the bicycle lane is traveling. 
 
 (b) The Common Council may authorize two- (2-) way traffic on any portion of a roadway which it has set aside 
as a bicycle lane.  Appropriate traffic signs shall be installed on all bicycle lanes open to two- (2-) way traffic. 
 
 (c) Unless otherwise provided under subsection (bd) of this section, a person operating a bicycle or electric 
scooter may enter or leave a bicycle lane only at intersections or at driveways adjoining the bicycle lane. 
 
 (d) A person may leave a bicycle lane at any point by dismounting from the bicycle or electric scooter and 
walking it out of the lane. A person may enter a bicycle lane at any point by walking his bicycle or electric scooter 
into the lane and then mounting it. 
 
 (e) Every person operating a bicycle or electric scooter upon a bicycle lane shall exercise due care and give an 
audible signal when passing a bicycle or electric scooter rider proceeding in the same direction. 
 
 (f) Every operator of a bicycle or electric scooter entering a bicycle lane shall yield the right-of-way to all 
bicycles or electric scooters in the bicycle lane. Upon leaving a bicycle lane, the operator of a bicycle or electric 
scooter shall yield the right-of-way to all vehicles and pedestrians. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(15)) 
 
Sec. 19-186. Riding bicycle or electric scooter on bicycle way. 
 
 (a) Every person operating a bicycle or electric scooter upon a bicycle way shall: 
 
  (1) Exercise due care and give an audible signal when passing a bicycle rider, electric scooter operator, or a 

pedestrian proceeding in the same direction. 
 
  (2) Obey each traffic signal or sign facing a roadway which runs parallel and adjacent to a bicycle way. 
 
 (b) Every person operating a bicycle or electric scooter upon a bicycle way open to one- (1-) way traffic shall 
ride on the right side of the bicycle way. 
 
 (c) Every operator of a bicycle or electric scooter entering a bicycle way shall yield the right-of-way to all 
bicycles and pedestrians in the bicycle way. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(16)) 
 
Sec. 19-187. Carrying passengers. 
 
 (a) A person propelling a bicycle shall not ride other than upon or astride a permanent and a regular seat attached 
thereto. 
 
 (b) No bicycle or electric scooter shall be used to carry more persons at one time than the number for which it is 
designed and equipped. 
 
 (c) No bicycle except a tandem shall be used to carry any person except the operator unless equipped with a 
child's seat, in which case the following conditions and regulations must be met: 
 
  (1) The operator shall be fourteen (14) years of age or older. 



 
  (2) The passenger shall not exceed fifty (50) pounds in weight and shall be seated on the child's seat. 
 
  (3) The child’s seat shall be fastened securely to the bicycle; shall be located behind the operator's seat; and 

shall be designed and manufactured for this specific purpose and be equipped with safety belt, arm rest, 
back rest, foot and spoke protection, and have a firm seat and back and be attached to the frame at three 
(3) points with bolts or nuts, two (2) of which are at either side of the wheel axle or the frame adjacent 
to the rear axle. 

 
  (4) Only one (1) child’s seat shall be attached to a bicycle. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(17)) 
 
Sec. 19-188. Improper riding, trick riding and racing. 
 
 (a) No person operating a bicycle or electric scooter upon a public street or sidewalk shall participate in any 
race, speed or endurance contest unless such race or endurance contest has the written permission of the Chief of 
Police and is conducted under the supervision of the police. 
 
 (b) No person riding or operating a bicycle or electric scooter shall perform or attempt to perform any acrobatic, 
fancy, or stunt riding upon any public street or sidewalk. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(18)) 
 
Sec. 19-189. Obedience to speed limits. 
 
 No person shall operate a bicycle or electric scooter at a speed greater than the speed limit. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(19)) 
 
Sec. 19-190. Obedience to traffic-control devices. 
 
 Any person operating a bicycle or electric scooter shall obey the instructions of official traffic-control devices 
applicable to vehicles, unless otherwise directed by a police officer. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(20)) 
 
Sec. 19-191. Stopping, turning and signaling. 
 
 (a) If any other traffic may be affected by such movement, no bicycle or electric scooter operator shall stop, 
slow down or turn without giving an arm signal required by state law for the operation of motor vehicles. The operator 
of a bicycle or electric scooter shall give such signal continuously during not less than the last fifty (50) feet traveled 
before turning. 
 
 (b) No person may stop or suddenly decrease the speed of a vehicle without first giving an appropriate signal in 
the manner provided in W.S.A. §346.35 to the operator of any vehicle immediately to the rear when there is opportu-
nity to give such signal. This subsection does not apply to the operator of a bicycle or electric scooter approaching an 
official stop sign or traffic-control sign. 
 
 (c) Whenever authorized signs are erected indicating that no right or left turn or U-turn is permitted, no person 
operating a bicycle or electric scooter shall disobey the direction of any such sign, except where such person dismounts 
from the bicycle or electric scooter to make any such turn, in which event such person shall then obey the regulations 
applicable to pedestrians. 
 
 (d) Every person riding or operating a bicycle or electric scooter intending to turn to the right at an intersection 
or alley or driveway shall approach the turning point in the line of traffic nearest the right-hand curb of the street.  The 
bicycle or electric scooter driver, in turning left at an intersection, shall pass to the left of the center of the intersection 
before turning, unless otherwise directed by markers, buttons or signs.  At intersections where traffic is moving in 
opposite directions, if it is not safe for bicycles or electric scooters to make left-hand turns as described in this 
subsection, the bicycle or electric scooter driver shall stay in the right-hand lane and ride to the opposite corner, then 



dismount and walk the bicycle or electric scooter to the left-hand corner and proceed.  Crosswalks shall be used when 
walking a bicycle or electric scooter through an intersection. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(21)) 
 
Sec. 19-192. Emerging from alley or driveway. 
 
 The operator of a bicycle or electric scooter emerging from an alley, driveway or building shall stop prior to 
riding across a sidewalk or roadway.  Such operator shall in all cases yield the right-of-way to all pedestrians 
approaching on the sidewalk and to all vehicles approaching upon the roadway. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(22)) 
 
Sec. 19-193. Parking. 
 
 (a) No person shall park any bicycle or electric scooter on a sidewalk having a width of less than five and one-
half (5½) feet. 
 
 (b) On sidewalks with a width of five and one-half (5½) feet or more, bicycles or electric scooters shall not be 
parked: 
 
  (1) On the main traveled portion of the sidewalk; 
   
  (2) Against or adjacent to windows; or 
 
  (3) In such a manner as to constitute a hazard to pedestrians, traffic or property. 
 
 (c) Bicycle racks are to be used for parking where provided.  Bicycles are not to be parked on the sidewalk if a 
bicycle rack is available within three hundred (300) feet and able to be reached without crossing the street. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(23)) 
 
Sec. 19-194. Clinging to vehicles. 
 
 No person operating a bicycle or electric scooter shall attach himself or his bicycle or electric scooter to any 
vehicle upon a roadway. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(24)(a)) 
 
Sec. 19-195. Position of passengers; towing. 
 
 No person shall operate a bicycle or bicycle-trailer combination on a street or sidewalk when any person other 
than the operator is upon any portion thereof not designed or intended for the use of passengers, nor shall any person 
ride in such a position as to interfere with the operator's view ahead or to the side or to interfere with the operator's 
control of the bicycle, nor shall the operator of any bicycle draw any coaster, sled, person on roller skates, toy vehicle 
or any other similar vehicle on a public highway, except those trailers specifically designed for bicycles and having 
the following safeguards: 
 
 (1) The bicycle trailer to be towed must be firmly attached to the framework of the bicycle and be balanced to 

preclude detrimental effect on the operation of the bicycle. 
 
 (2) At least two (2) red reflectors must be fastened on the rear of the trailer and one (1) amber reflector on each 

side of the trailer. These reflectors are to be two (2) inches in diameter, or the equivalent in retro reflective 
material. 

 
 (3) Overall length of trailer unit from the extreme rear of the bicycle wheel is not to exceed forty (40) inches. 
 
 (4) Overall height of the trailer unit, including wheels, from ground level to the top of the carrying container, is 

not to exceed thirty-six (36) inches. 
 



 (5) Maximum width of the trailer unit, wheels, axle, container and the like is not to exceed thirty-six (36) inches. 
 
 (6) The trailer unit must be detachable from the bicycle. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(24)(b)) 
 
Sec. 19-196. Carrying articles. 
 
 No person operating a bicycle or electric scooter shall carry any package, bundle or article which prevents the 
operator from keeping at least one (1) hand upon the handlebars. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(25)) 
 
 
Sec. 19-197. Handlebars. 
 
 Every bicycle or electric scooter that is equipped with handle grips must have the grips securely glued or cemented 
to the handlebars. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(26)) 
 
Sec. 19-198. Lamps and other equipment. 
 
 (a) Lamps; reflectors.  No person may operate a bicycle or electric scooter upon a street, sidewalk, bicycle lane 
or bicycle way during hours of darkness unless such bicycle or electric scooter is equipped with or the operator is 
wearing a lamp on the front emitting a white light visible from a distance of at least five hundred (500) feet to the front 
of such bicycle or electric scooter.  Such bicycle or electric scooter shall also be equipped with a red reflector that has 
a diameter of at least two (2) inches of surface area on the rear, so mounted and maintained as to be visible from all 
distances from fifty (50) to five hundred (500) feet to the rear when directly in front of a lawful upper beam of 
headlamps on a motor vehicle.  A lamp emitting a red light visible from a distance of five hundred (500) feet to the 
rear may be used in addition to but not in lieu of the red reflector. 
 
 (b) Brakes.  No person may operate a bicycle or electric scooter upon a street, sidewalk, bicycle lane or bicycle 
way unless all braking equipment with which the bicycle or electric scooter was originally provided is in good working 
order.  No person may operate a bicycle or electric scooter equipped with a coaster brake upon a highway, bicycle lane 
or bicycle way unless such brakes will enable the operator to make the braked rear wheel skid on dry, level, clean 
pavement. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(27)) 
 
Sec. 19-199. Reserved. 
 
Editor’s Note:  Ord 151-07, effective November 13, 2007, repealed this entire section relating to rental agencies. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(28), Ord 151-07, §1, 11-13-07) 
 
Sec. 19-200. Riding bicycle or electric scooter without consent of owner. 
 
 No person shall intentionally take or ride a bicycle or electric scooter without the consent of the owner. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(2)(d)) 
 
Sec. 19-201.  Reserved. 
 
 
Editor’s Note:  Ord 152-07, effective November 13, 2007, repealed this entire section relating to driving motor vehicle 
on bicycle lane or bicycle way. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(30), Ord 152-07, §1, 11-13-07) 
 
Sec. 19-202. Reserved. 
 
 



Editor’s Note:  Ord 153-07, effective November 13, 2007, repealed this entire section relating to overtaking and 
passing of bicycles by motor vehicles. 
(Code 1965, §10.08(31), Ord 153-07, §1, 11-13-07) 
 
 









100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes

CEA Review Committee

3:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorMonday, April 12, 2021

Call meeting to order1.

Alderperson Firkus called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m.

Roll call of membership2.

Vandehey, Saucerman, Lobner and FirkusPresent: 4 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting3.

21-0378 Minutes from September 16, 2020

 

Minutes from September 16, 2020.pdfAttachments:

Lobner moved, seconded by Saucerman, that the Minutes be approved. Roll 

Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Vandehey, Saucerman, Lobner and Firkus4 - 

Public Hearings/Appearances4.

Action Items5.

21-0379 Request from Department of Utilities to remove JD Tractor #1508 from 

CEA Fleet without replacement.

 

Remove JD Tractor #1508.pdfAttachments:

Lobner moved, seconded by Saucerman, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Vandehey, Saucerman, Lobner and Firkus4 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17129
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ec384b27-2ae1-454a-a36c-d670583c0f0c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17130
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a56fc39d-698c-4a34-8397-883a41161257.pdf


April 12, 2021CEA Review Committee Meeting Minutes

21-0380 Request to upgrade Pick-Up Truck #1521 to four-wheel drive when 

replaced in 2022.  Total additional cost of $3,300 to be paid using 

replacement reserve funds from Tractor #1508.

 

Pick-up Truck #1521 to Four Wheel Drive in 2022.pdfAttachments:

Lobner moved, seconded by Vandehey, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Vandehey, Saucerman, Lobner and Firkus4 - 

21-0381 Request to retain Reid Golf Course sprayer #602 as a spare when 

replaced in 2022, increasing overall fleet by one vehicle.

 

Reid Golf Course sprayer #602.pdfAttachments:

Lobner moved, seconded by Vandehey, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Vandehey, Saucerman, Lobner and Firkus4 - 

21-0382 Request to eliminate Mower #538 and replace with two stand on, zero 

turn mowers using replacement reserve funds from mower #538 and add 

them both into CEA Fleet.

 

Replace 538 Kubota Mower.pdfAttachments:

Lobner moved, seconded by Vandehey, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Vandehey, Saucerman, Lobner and Firkus4 - 

21-0383 Request to upgrade Sweeper #113 when replaced in 2022 for a total 

additional cost of $10,000.

 

Upgrade Sweeper #113.pdfAttachments:

Lobner moved, seconded by Vandehey, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Vandehey, Saucerman, Lobner and Firkus4 - 

21-0384 Request to upgrade Sign Shop Pick-up Truck #185 when replaced in 

2022 for a total additional cost of $25,000.

 

Upgrade Truck #185.pdfAttachments:

Lobner moved, seconded by Vandehey, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Page 2City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17131
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a1f2c0cb-7542-4467-a5a8-cea6f444f77a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17132
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d2b6f22e-a161-4c7c-8afc-54b550e897a4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17133
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9a5c8664-40cd-488e-87bb-b5d4d30af253.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17134
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=125e3d39-d00f-451a-99b8-6d656ea27a17.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17135
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cf81249f-c24b-4296-8319-40a5873a4ba4.pdf


April 12, 2021CEA Review Committee Meeting Minutes

Aye: Vandehey, Saucerman, Lobner and Firkus4 - 

21-0385 Request to add a Toolcat Utility Vehicle to the Parking Utility CEA Fleet 

in 2022 for a total cost of $75,000.

 

Add a Toolcat Utility Vehicle.pdfAttachments:

Lobner moved, seconded by Vandehey, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Vandehey, Saucerman, Lobner and Firkus4 - 

21-0386 Approve 2021 Seasonal Vehicles.

 

CEA Seasonal Vehicle Request.pdfAttachments:

Lobner moved, seconded by Saucerman, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Vandehey, Saucerman, Lobner and Firkus4 - 

21-0432 Approve amended Central Equipment Agency Policy and Procedure 

Manual.

 

CEA Procedures Manual Strike and Bold April 2021.pdfAttachments:

Lobner moved, seconded by Saucerman, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Vandehey, Saucerman, Lobner and Firkus4 - 

Information Items6.

21-0387 2021 Equipment Purchase Log.

 

2021 Purchase Log.pdfAttachments:

21-0388 Proposed 2022 Equipment Replacements.

 

2022 CEA Equipment Replacements.pdfAttachments:

Adjournment7.

Lobner moved, seconded by Saucerman, that the meeting be adjourned at 

3:55 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Vandehey, Saucerman, Lobner and Firkus4 - 

Page 3City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17136
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dbd69e05-640a-4c21-9ac7-fb538ed8c064.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17137
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=132d4d52-16b6-45fd-a819-ef65b3c3fc8a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17183
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=55a8ce88-c889-4d07-8f74-09c87cc55c94.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17138
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0a3c9916-951b-49e3-a9d7-60f26ba4c0a8.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17139
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=921093ff-1879-470e-86c1-4cd4800d6a15.pdf


 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572  FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 

TO:  Finance Committee 

 

FROM: Dean R. Gazza 

 

DATE:  4/26/2021 

 

RE: Action: Award the City of Appleton’s "2021 Park Pavilions Roof Replacement 

Project" contract to Schulze Exteriors, LLC. in the amount of $106,374 with a 

contingency of 10,000 for a project total not to exceed $116,374. 

 

 

The 2021 Capital Improvement Plan includes $125,000 to replace roofs on both of the Telulah 

Park Pavilions, the Schaefer Park Pavilion, and the Vulcan Hydroelectric Replica Building. The 

amount of $5,700 has been utilized for design leaving a balance of $119,300 for construction. 

The existing roofs are at the end of their useful life and are in need of replacement. Our annual 

roof inspection program identifies roofing in need of replacement and allocates resources to 

allow for proactive replacement to protect and preserve the facility’s asset. 

 

The bids were received as follows: 

 

Schulze Exteriors, LLC.  (low bid)  $106,374 

RJM Construction, LLC.   $127,900 

  

Our consulting engineer has written the City of Appleton a formal letter of recommendation to 

award the contract to Schulze Exteriors LLC. The Parks, Recreation, and Facilities Management 

Department has also reviewed the bids and is in agreement with the engineer's recommendation. 

Therefore, we recommend awarding the contract to Schulze Exteriors, LLC. in the amount of 

$106,374 plus a contingency of $10,000 only to be utilized as needed. 

 

Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 
 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org
mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572  FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 
TO:  Finance Committee 

 

FROM:  Dean R. Gazza 

 

DATE:  4/26/2021 

 

RE: Action: Approve Lower Substation Building Remodeling Project Engineering 

Services Amendment #1 increasing the McMahon total contract amount by $7,000 

from $24,000 to $31,000 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The majority of the Appleton Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) electrical distribution system 

is from the mid-1970’s and has reached the end of its useful life. The electrical distribution system is 

critical to the Wastewater Treatment Plant’s operations and needs to be upgraded to reduce the risk 

of an electrical distribution component failure. In 2017 AWWTP and PRFMD implemented a five-

phase project to upgrade the AWWTP electrical distribution system. An integral part of the project is 

to renovate the E–Building to house the new lower substation. Currently the E-Building is an 

electrical distribution building that will be repurposed for the new system.  

 

The 2021 Capital Improvement Plan includes $2,300,000 for the Wastewater Electrical Distribution 

Upgrades Project Phase 4. Phase 4 includes renovation of the E-Building and installation of two new 

substations. 

 

At the beginning of the project, Patrick Engineering was hired to complete the design services 

needed for the electrical distribution equipment upgrades.  However, during design it was determined 

that the best location for the new lower substation was the current E-Building. The renovation of the 

E-Building requires architectural design and Patrick Engineering does not provide architectural 

services. We entered into a contract with McMahon to complete the necessary architectural services 

needed for the E-Building renovation. During the design process several unknown conditions arose 

that required additional services which included structural engineering services for reinforcing the 

F1-F2 tunnel walls and relocation of the HVAC equipment. Those extra items were not included in 

the original contract.  

  

The cost of additional engineering services outlined as part of the McMahon Contract Amendment 

#1 totals $7,000.  This amendment would result in the contract amount increasing from $24,000 to 

$31,000.   

 

Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org
mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572  FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 

TO:  Finance Committee 

 

FROM: Dean R. Gazza 

 

DATE:  04-26-21  

 

RE: Action:  Award the “2021 AWWTP Electrical Distribution Upgrades Phase 4 

Project - Substation Installation” contract to Van Ert Electric, Inc. in the amount 

of $2,130,000 with a contingency of 10% for a project total not to exceed 

$2,343,000.   

 

The 2021 Capital Improvement Plan includes $2,300,000 for the Wastewater Electrical 

Distribution Upgrades Project. The amount of $1,266,333 was carried over from 2020 for a 

Phase 4 total budget of $3,566,333. The amount of $219,000 has been utilized for design and 

$340,000 has been utilized for the Lower Substation Building Renovation, leaving a balance of 

$3,007,333 for construction activities associated with Phase 4 of the AWWTP Electrical 

Distribution Upgrades Project. The majority of the electrical distribution system is from the mid-

1970’s and has reached the end of its useful life. The electrical distribution system is critical to 

the Wastewater Treatment Plant’s operations and needs to be upgraded to reduce the risk of an 

electrical distribution component failure. This is Phase Four of a Five-Phase project.    

 

The bids were received as follows: 
 

Van Ert Electric, Inc.  $2,130,000 

Pieper Electric, Inc.  $2,177,000 

Altmeyer Electric, Inc.   $2,279,484 

Elmstar Electric Corporaton   $2,406,930 

Northern Electric, Inc.   $2,488,110 
 

Our consulting engineer has written the City of Appleton a formal letter of recommendation to 

award the contract to Van Ert Electric, Inc. The Parks, Recreation, and Facilities Management 

Department has also reviewed the bids and is in agreement with the engineer’s recommendation. 

Therefore, we recommend awarding the contract to Van Ert Electric, Inc. in the amount of 

$2,130,000 plus a contingency of 10% only to be utilized as needed. 

 

Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org
mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572  FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 

TO:  Finance Committee 

 

FROM: Dean R. Gazza 

 

DATE:  4/26/2021 

 

RE: Action:  Award the “2021 AWWTP Electrical Distribution Upgrades Phase 4 

Project – Lower Substation Building Renovation” contract to Cardinal 

Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $303,395 with a contingency of 12% for a 

project total not to exceed $339,802.   

 

The 2021 Capital Improvement Plan includes $2,300,000 for the Wastewater Electrical 

Distribution Upgrades Project. The amount of $1,266,333 was carried over from 2020 for a 

Phase 4 total budget of $3,566,333. The amount of $219,000 has been utilized for design and 

$2,130,000 has been utilized for the Substation Installation Project, leaving a balance of 

$1,217,333 for construction activities associated with Phase 4 of the AWWTP Electrical 

Distribution Upgrades Project. The majority of the electrical distribution system is from the mid-

1970’s and has reached the end of its useful life. The electrical distribution system is critical to 

the Wastewater Treatment Plant’s operations and needs to be upgraded to reduce the risk of an 

electrical distribution component failure. This is Phase Four of a Five-Phase project.    

 

The bids were received as follows: 
 

Cardinal Construction Co., Inc.  $303,395 

The Boldt Co.  $341,042 
 

Our consulting engineer has written the City of Appleton a formal letter of recommendation to 

award the contract to Cardinal Construction Co., Inc. The Parks, Recreation, and Facilities 

Management Department has also reviewed the bids and is in agreement with the engineer’s 

recommendation. Therefore, we recommend awarding the contract to Cardinal Construction Co., 

Inc. in the amount of $303,395 plus a contingency of 12% only to be utilized as needed. 

 

Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org
mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


TO:  Finance Committee

 Municipal Services Committee

 Utilities Committee

The Department of Public Works recommends that the following described work:

Unit D-21 Sidewalk Construction

Be awarded to:  

Name:  Fischer Ulman Construction, Inc.

Address:  915 S. Midpark Drive

Appleton, WI 54915

In the amount of :

With a % contingency of :

For a project total not to exceed :

In an amount Not To Exceed :

Budget:

Estimate:  

Committee Date:

Council Date: 05/05/21

C I T Y   O F   A P P L E T O N

Department of Public Works

MEMORANDUM

$330,000.00

SUBJECT: Award of Contract

**  OR  **

$330,000.00

$355,000.00

04/26/21

4/22/2021

J:\ENGINEERING\2ENGINEERS\Curran K\Projects\2021\Unit D-21 Sidewalk Construction\Contract Documents\D-21 Contract Award Form.xlsx



Bid Tabulation
D-21 Sidewalk Construction
04/12/2021 01:45 PM CDT

Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total
1 Furnish & Install 4" Sidewalk 35,000 sq. ft. $4.70 $164,500.00 $4.70 $164,500.00
2 Furnish & Install 5" Sidewalk 8,500 sq. ft. $5.25 $44,625.00 $5.25 $44,625.00
3 Furnish & Install 5" Driveway Apron 700 sq. ft. $5.25 $3,675.00 $5.25 $3,675.00
4 Furnish & Install 5" Private Driveway 150 sq. ft. $6.00 $900.00 $6.00 $900.00
5 Furnish & Install 7" Sidewalk 700 sq. ft. $6.50 $4,550.00 $6.50 $4,550.00
6 Furnish & Install 7" Handicap Ramp 1,400 sq. ft. $6.50 $9,100.00 $6.50 $9,100.00
7 Furnish & Install 7" Driveway Apron 250 sq. ft. $6.50 $1,625.00 $6.50 $1,625.00
8 Furnish & Install 8" Sidewalk 75 sq. ft. $7.00 $525.00 $7.00 $525.00
9 Furnish & Install 8" Driveway Apron 100 sq. ft. $6.75 $675.00 $6.75 $675.00

10 Text Imprint (Poem Stamping) 25 each $160.00 $4,000.00 $130.00 $3,250.00
11 Furnish & Install 3" Sidewalk at Vaults 120 sq. ft. $20.00 $2,400.00 $25.00 $3,000.00
12 Furnish & Install 4" Sidewalk at Vaults 120 sq. ft. $20.00 $2,400.00 $27.00 $3,240.00
13 Furnish & Install 6" Sidewalk at Vaults 120 sq. ft. $20.00 $2,400.00 $30.00 $3,600.00
14 Furnish & Install 3" Colored & Stamped Sidewalk at Vaults 120 sq. ft. $23.00 $2,760.00 $33.00 $3,960.00
15 Furnish & Install 4" Colored & Stamped Sidewalk at Vaults 120 sq. ft. $23.00 $2,760.00 $33.00 $3,960.00
16 Furnish & Install 6" Colored & Stamped Sidewalk at Vaults 120 sq. ft. $23.00 $2,760.00 $33.00 $3,960.00
17 Furnish & Install 4" Picture Frame Sidewalk 250 sq. ft. $10.00 $2,500.00 $10.00 $2,500.00
18 Furnish & Install 7" Picture Frame Sidewalk 175 sq. ft. $11.00 $1,925.00 $11.00 $1,925.00
19 Furnish & Install 5" Colored & Stamped Sidewalk 125 sq. ft. $25.00 $3,125.00 $25.00 $3,125.00
20 Furnish & Install 7" Colored Concrete Handicap Ramp 100 sq. ft. $15.00 $1,500.00 $20.00 $2,000.00
21 Furnish & Install 7" Plain Concrete Pavement 40 sq. yds. $62.00 $2,480.00 $62.00 $2,480.00
22 Furnish & Install 8" Plain Concrete Pavement 40 sq. yds. $64.00 $2,560.00 $64.00 $2,560.00
23 Furnish & Install 30" Concrete Curb & Gutter 100 lin.ft. $39.00 $3,900.00 $38.00 $3,800.00
24 Furnish & Install Special Curb 125 lin. ft. $30.00 $3,750.00 $31.00 $3,875.00
25 High Early Concrete - 3 Day 40 cu. yds. $20.00 $800.00 $20.00 $800.00
26 High Early Concrete - 1 Day 60 cu. yds. $22.00 $1,320.00 $25.00 $1,500.00
27 Full Depth Sawcut 275 lin. ft. $4.50 $1,237.50 $4.00 $1,100.00
28 Concrete Pavement Removal 60 sq. yds. $7.00 $420.00 $7.00 $420.00

Fischer-Ulman Construction Al Dix Concrete IncBid            
Item

Item Description Quantity Unit



Bid Tabulation
D-21 Sidewalk Construction
04/12/2021 01:45 PM CDT

Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total
Fischer-Ulman Construction Al Dix Concrete IncBid            

Item
Item Description Quantity Unit

29 Curb & Gutter Removal 150 lin.ft. $5.00 $750.00 $5.00 $750.00
30 Private Concrete/Asphalt Drive Removal 150 sq. ft. $1.70 $255.00 $1.60 $240.00
31 Concrete/Asphalt Driveway Apron Removal 550 sq. ft. $1.70 $935.00 $1.70 $935.00
32 Concrete/Asphalt Handicap Removal 1,200 sq. ft. $1.70 $2,040.00 $1.70 $2,040.00
33 Concrete/Asphalt Sidewalk Removal 36,500 sq. ft. $1.40 $51,100.00 $1.40 $51,100.00
34 Furnish & Install Gravel Fill 100 tons $18.00 $1,800.00 $18.00 $1,800.00
35 Furnish & Install No. 4 Reinforcing Rods 150 lin. ft. $2.00 $300.00 $1.75 $262.50
36 Furnish & Install Drill-In Tie Bars 50 each $8.00 $400.00 $8.00 $400.00
37 Furnish & Install 3"Asphalt Pavement 325 sq. ft. $8.50 $2,762.50 $8.50 $2,762.50
38 Furnish & Install 6"Asphalt Pavement 250 sq. ft. $9.00 $2,250.00 $9.00 $2,250.00
39 Adjust Sanitary Manhole Top 2 each $300.00 $600.00 $300.00 $600.00
40 Adjust Storm Manhole Top 2 each $275.00 $550.00 $275.00 $550.00
41 Adjust Inlet Tops 2 each $275.00 $550.00 $275.00 $550.00
42 Furnish & Install 15' of 3" PVC 4 each $180.00 $720.00 $175.00 $700.00
43 Furnish & Install Truncated Domes 300 sq. ft. $30.00 $9,000.00 $30.00 $9,000.00
44 F&I Erosion Cont. Revegetative Mat,Class I, Type A Urban 600 sq. yds. $7.00 $4,200.00 $7.00 $4,200.00
45 Furnish & Install & Remove Type D-M Inlet Protection 3 each $75.00 $225.00 $75.00 $225.00
46 Furnish & Install & Remove Curlex Sediment Log 20 lin. Ft. $15.00 $300.00 $15.00 $300.00
47 Furnish & Install Traffic Control 1 lump sum $2,700.00 $2,700.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00

Base Bid Total: $356,610.00 $363,895.00



                 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

Engineering Division 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911 

TEL (920) 832-6474 

                                                                                    FAX (920) 832-6489 

 

 

MEMO 
 

TO:  Finance Committee 

   

FROM: Ross Buetow, City Engineer 

Pete Neuberger, Staff Engineer 

 

SUBJECT: Unit L-21 Sewer and Water Construction in Lightning Drive and Edgewood Drive 

 Recommendation to Reject All Bids 

 

DATE:  April 22, 2021 

▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬     

 

The Department of Public Works recommends rejecting all bids received on April 19, 2021 for Unit L-21, 

Sewer and Water Construction in Lightning Drive and Edgewood Drive. 

 

The Department of Public Works received five bids for this project, which has a budget of 

$1,538,850.00. The three lowest bids were within budget but were determined by DPW to have used a 

subcontractor bid for the trenchless utility installation portion of the work that did not comply with the 

project specifications. The two highest bids appeared to comply with the project specifications but were 

over budget. 

During the bid period, based on conversations with prospective bidders, DPW staff determined potential 

changes to the project specifications that will still meet the project goals and likely reduce future bid 

prices to at or below approved budget. Therefore, DPW intends to rebid Unit L-21 in May of 2021, with 

changes to the trenchless utility installation specifications. 

 



                 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

Engineering Division 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911 

TEL (920) 832-6474 

                                                                                    FAX (920) 832-6489 

 

TO:  Members of the Finance and Utilities Committees 
 

FROM: Ross Buetow, Deputy Director/City Engineer 
   

SUBJECT: Proposed Postponement of 2021 Utility Construction Projects  
 

DATE:  April 21, 2021 
 

 

 

The Engineering Division is currently assembling bid packages for our 2021 construction projects and 

have identified several proposed work locations where significant future changes to abutting properties is 

likely or where negotiations for required access/easements are still in progress.  For these reasons, we are 

recommending that our staff continue to work on finalizing appropriate designs for these locations as 

more information becomes available, but postpone the bidding and construction until 2022. 

 

The following is a summary of the affected locations: 

 

Street From To Acct 5371 Acct 5230 Acct 5431 Acct 4142

Easement (e/o Riverview Lane) River Road Bouten St $155,800.00

WWTP Weimar Ct Newberry Ct $207,800.00

Durkee St College Ave Washington St $52,520.00 $25,850.00 $9,100.00

Morrison St College Ave Washington St $125,655.00 $16,425.00 $8,050.00

Durkee St Lawrence St College Ave $175,330.00

Lawrence St Appleton St Durkee St $325,875.00

Morrison St Lawrence St, s/o College Ave $204,750.00

Oneida St Lawrence St College Ave $185,365.00

$541,775.00 $42,275.00 $17,150.00 $891,320.00  
 

The scope of these projects includes the reconstruction of sanitary sewers, storm sewers and/or water 

mains.  The timing of any subsequent street paving projects will be adjusted accordingly as more 

information becomes available.  If this request is approved, it would be our intent to re-budget for these 

projects in 2022. 

 

Please feel free to contact me at 832-6485 if you have any questions regarding this request. Thank you for 

your consideration. 

 
 

H:\Word\Committees\2021\Finance and Utilities Committees Memo - Proposed postponement of 2021 utility projects.doc 
 

 



Resolution #4-R-21 

Submitted by: Denise Fenton – District 6, Katie Van Zeeland – District 5,  Maiyoua Thao – District 7, Vered 
Meltzer – District 2, Alex Schultz – District 9 
Date: 3-17-2021 
Referred To: Community & Economic Development Committee 

WHEREAS, the Convention on the Elimination of all forms of Discrimination Against Women (CEDAW) 
was adopted by the United Nations General Assembly on December 18, 1979 and became an 
international treaty on September 3, 1981, with 187 United Nations member nations out of 193 having 
agreed to be bound by CEDAW’s provisions, the United States being one of the minority who have not; 
and 

WHEREAS, CEDAW is known as an international bill of rights for women – the only international human 
rights treaty that focuses entirely on ending discrimination against women, addressing equal pay for 
women, eliminating violence against women, and supporting families and caregivers; and 

WHEREAS, CEDAW provides a comprehensive framework for governments to examine their policies and 
practices in relation to women, girls, and others who identify as female and to rectify discrimination 
based on gender; and 

WHEREAS, although women have made gains in the struggle for equality in many fields, much more 
needs to be accomplished to fully eradicate discrimination based on gender and its connection and 
intersectionality with other forms of discrimination; and  

WHEREAS, the 2020 American Community Survey using U.S. Census data shows that median income for 
women in Appleton is almost $10,000 per year less than for men in our city; and 

WHEREAS, city government has an appropriate and legitimate role affirming the importance of 
eliminating all forms of discrimination against women and those who identify as female and to rectify 
discrimination based on gender; and 

WHEREAS, Appleton’s belief statement that our city should exemplify a high quality of life and be a safe 
place to live, work, visit, study, and play should apply equally to all; and 

WHEREAS, Cities for CEDAW is a grassroots effort that provides tools and leadership to empower local 
organization and municipalities to effectively initiate CEDAW within their respective localities; and,  

WHEREAS, over 200 national and international organizations have endorsed CEDAW, and the U.S. 
Conference of Mayors adopted a resolution in 2014 in support of the Cities for CEDAW campaign. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Appleton affirms the 
principles of fundamental human rights and equality for women in our community and the elimination 
of political, social economic and cultural discrimination against women; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of Appleton encourage city staff and 
elected officials to become familiar with the provisions of the United Nations Convention on the 
Elimination of all Forms of Discrimination Against Women (CEDAW) and advise the Council of any 
changes in policy or practices they feel would help the City of Appleton align with the tenets of this 
convention; and 



BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to Wisconsin’s U.S. Congressional 
Delegation expressing our support of the United States’ ratification of the Convention on the Elimination 
of all Forms of Discrimination Against Women (CEDAW).  



 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572  FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 
 

TO:  Fox Cities Transit Commission 

 

FROM:  Dean R. Gazza, Director, Parks Recreation and Facilities Management 

 

DATE:  4/27/2021 

 

RE:  Action Item:  Award the Design Contract for the “2021 Valley Transit Whitman Avenue 

Facility Renovation Project” to Kueny Architects, LLC. in the amount of $230,335 plus 

a 10% contingency of $23,033 for a total not to exceed a project design cost of $253,368. 
 
 
PROJECT 
The 2021 Valley Transit budget has allocated monies to implement a facility-wide renovation of the 

Valley Transit Whitman Avenue Facility in accordance with all Federal Transit Administration 

Guidelines and the Valley Transit Whitman Avenue Master Plan. This renovation project will follow the 

fully adopted facility master plan that was completed in 2020. The renovation will include, but is not 

limited to a building addition, HVAC upgrades, electrical upgrades, plumbing upgrades, office expansion, 

and all related site work. This memo addresses selecting a design consultant to fully design, create 

construction documents, bid, and perform construction administration services for the Valley Transit 

Whitman Avenue Facility Remodeling Project. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Valley Transit Whitman Avenue Facility was constructed in 1982 and has remained largely the same 

as it was in 1982. The facility is approximately 41,000 square feet. This includes an office area, bus 

maintenance shop, locker rooms, bus parking area, and a carwash. The facility is currently having issues 

with the plumbing waste lines and is also in need of a cosmetic update. Valley Transit operations has also 

outgrown the existing building footprint and an expansion is needed to accommodate operational needs. 

 
RFP PROCESS: 
The request for proposal was distributed via Vendornet and published on the City of Appleton’s 
website to potential consulting firms.  Representatives from ten firms attended a pre-proposal 
meeting where the project was defined along with the project scope. All firms who attended the pre-
proposal meeting submitted proposals. The proposals were reviewed and scored by PRFMD and 
Valley Transit staff prior to the opening of the bid tabulation document. The following table 
identifies the engineering firms along with their proposal score and proposal pricing: 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


 
 
 

Table 1:  Engineering Firms and RFQ Results 
 

Firm: 

TOTAL 

PTS 

 

 

Westwood 1085 
 

CGI/Dimension 860 
 

Kueny Architects, LLC. 1655 
 

 
 

The evaluation team completed their review and scoring of the submitted proposals based on the 
Brooks Act. The Brooks Act is a federal requirement that professional services be awarded to be best 
qualified firm. The evaluation team found that Kueny Architects, LLC. was the most qualified firm. 
After Kueny Architects, LCC. was chosen based on qualifications, the evaluation team negotiated a 
fair contract price for the project.  
 
The evaluation team then completed a reference check to ensure Kueny Architects, LLC. was the 
right choice for both Valley Transit and PRFMD for both quality of work and cost. The reference 
check demonstrated that Kueny Architects. LLC. is a responsible firm that will provide a quality 
product at a fair price. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Award the Design Contract for the “2021 Valley Transit Whitman Avenue Facility Renovation 
Project” to Kueny Architects, LLC. in the amount of $230,335 plus a 10% contingency of $23,033 
for a total not to exceed project design cost of $253,368. 

 

Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 
 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org










4-20-21 10:15 AM Sign RFB VT21-001 Bid Opening

Overall Fed 

Regulations

Specifications/

Requirements 

Certification

Decker Supply Company Madison WI Yes $17,953.50 Yes 60 days Yes Yes Yes Recommend for approval

International Nameplate, ON Canada - Longview TX Yes $20,869.50 Yes 60 days Yes Yes Yes

Blink Signs, Cleveland OH Yes $36,070.50 Yes 7 - 10 days No Yes Yes

Wisconsin Dept of Corrections, Madison WI Yes $9,262.50 Yes 30 days No Yes Yes

Osburn Associates, Logan OH Yes $16,621.50 Yes 60 days No Yes Yes

3D Specialties, Fargo ND Yes $14,077.22 No 35 days Yes Yes Yes

Tapco, Brown Deer, WI Yes $23,685.00 No 35 days Yes Yes Yes

Lightll Enterprises Franfort, OH Yes $16,830.00 No 45 - 60 days No Yes Yes

Pixelwerx, Plymouth MN Yes $49,637.50 No 14 days No Yes Yes

Comet Sign LLC, San Antonio TX Yes $63,025.50 No 60 days No Yes Yes

Kolob Industries LLC, Herber City UT Yes $18,507.00 No 21 days No Yes Yes

Certifications

Bid Form

Acknowledgem

ent of 

AddendumCompany Name Price Delivery Date

Proposed 

Product 

Specifications









15-21 
 
AN ORDINANCE CREATING SECTION 3-25 OF CHAPTER 3 OF THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO PROHIBITION ON LARGE 
SCALE COMMERCIAL DOG OR CAT BREEDING. 

(Safety and Licensing Committee – 4/21/2021) 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 
 

Section 1:  That Section 3-25 of Chapter 3 of the Municipal Code of the City of 

Appleton, relating to prohibition on large scale commercial dog or cat breeding, is hereby created 

to read as follows: 

Sec. 3-25. Prohibition on large scale commercial dog or cat breeding. 
 
 (a) Definitions.  The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this 
section, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this paragraph: 
 
 Animal care facility means an animal control facility or animal shelter, 
maintained by or under contract with any state, county, or municipality, whose 
mission and practice is, in whole, or significant part, the rescue and placement of 
animals in permanent homes or rescue organizations. 
 
 Animal rescue organization means any not-for-profit organization that 
has tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the United States Internal 
Revenue Code, whose mission and practice is, in whole or in significant part, the 
rescue and placement of animals in permanent homes. This term does not include 
an entity that is a breeder or broker or one that obtains animals from a breeder or 
broker for profit or compensation. 
 
 Breeder means a person that maintains a dog or cat for the purpose of 
breeding and selling their offspring. 
 
 Broker means a person that transfers a dog or cat from a breeder for resale 
by another person. 
 
 Cat means a member of the species of domestic cat, Felis catus. 
  
 Dog means a member of the species of domestic dog, Canis familiaris. 
 
 Pet store means a retail establishment where companion animals are sold, 
exchanged, bartered, or offered for sale to the general public. Such definition shall 
not include an animal care facility or animal rescue organization. 
 



 (b) Restrictions on the sale of animals.  No pet store shall sell, deliver, 
offer for sale, barter, auction, give away, or otherwise transfer or dispose of cats or dogs. 
Nothing in this section shall prohibit pet stores from collaborating with animal care 
facilities or animal rescue organizations to offer space for such entities to showcase 
adoptable dogs or cats provided the pet store shall not have any ownership interest in the 
animals offered for adoption and shall not receive a fee for providing space for the 
adoption of any of these animals.  Dogs may not be kept overnight. 
 
 (c) Penalty.  A violation of this section shall be subject to a penalty as 
provided in §1-16, and each dog or cat in violation of this section shall constitute a 
separate violation. 
 
 (d) Effective date.  This section shall become effective July 1, 2021. 
 
 
Section 2:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect on July 1, 2021. 


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CC Organizational Meeting Minutes 4-21-21
	0001_2_CC Minutes 4-21-21
	0003_1_5-5-21 Reappointments
	0005_1_1-P-21 Public Hearing Notice
	0006_1_2-P-21 Public Hearing Notice
	0007_1_Final Resolution 1-P-21 Concrete Paving Sidewalks and Aprons
	0008_1_Final Resolution 2-P-21 Sanitary Laterals, Storm Laterals, Storm Main
	0009_1_CEA Procedures Manual Strike and Bold April 2021
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	I. PURPOSE     ……………………………………………………………  4
	I. PURPOSE
	II. MISSION STATEMENTS
	A. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS MISSION STATEMENT

	CONTINUED USE OF ASSETS
	SEASONAL VEHICLES

	0010_1_Downtown Streetscape Design Guide
	0011_1_YMCA-Permanent Street Occ. Permit
	0012_1_514 W College Street Occ. Permit
	0013_1_509 W College Ave Stree Occ. Permit
	0014_1_6-R-21 AAPI Resolution
	0014_2_HAP Letter of Disappointment
	0014_3_Literacy statement
	0014_4_DR Statement of Support AAPI Community
	0014_5_Statement in support of City of Appleton Resolution 6R21
	0014_6_Statement-AAPI Resolution-City of Appleton 4-27-21
	0014_7_Support of AAPI Resolution
	0014_8_APPI comments- T. Hanna 
	0015_1_7-R-21 Outdoor Alcohol Service
	0016_1_CamiloSebentsfeldtDenial
	0016_2_Sebentsfeldt, Camilo
	0017_1_Stone Arch Brewpub
	0018_1_Gregg VanDinter
	0019_1_Aaron D Dalton-6535 SL
	0020_1_Aaron D Dalton SL
	0021_1_Howard Johnston SL
	0022_1_Cambria Suites
	0023_1_Social Station, LLC
	0024_1_Moon Water Cafe Permanent SL
	0025_1_Dairyland Brew Pub
	0026_1_Electric Scooter Ordinance Amendment_Chief Thomas
	0027_1_DPW Budget Adj
	0028_1_CEA MeetingMinutes12-Apr-2021-09-55-52
	0029_1_2021 Parks Pavilion Roof Replacemnt Project
	0030_1_2021 AWWTP Lower Substation Building Remodeling Design Contract Ammendment
	0031_1_2021 AWWTP Electrical Distribution Upgrades Phase 4 - Substation Installation
	0032_1_2021 AWWTP Electrical Distribution Upgrades Phase 4 - Lower Subsation Building Renovation
	0033_1_Award of Contract Unit D-21
	0034_1_Reject all Bids - Unit L-21
	0035_1_Postpone 2021 Sewer and Water Projects
	0036_1_4-R-21 CEDAW Resolution
	0037_1_2021 Valley Transit (Whitman Ave) Facility Remodeling Professional Services
	0038_1_Request Authorization fo Issue PO for Buses 04.2021
	0039_1_Award Recommendation VT21-001 Signs
	0039_2_Bus Stop Sign Bid Matrix
	0040_1_Memo for Disabled Vet Free Fare 04.21.2021
	0040_2_VA Ltr for VT
	0041_1_Ordinances going to Council 5-5-21



